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Business Review

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

Yorkshire Water demonstrated real resilience in 2010/11 as the company effectively
managed and overcame a number of significant operational, environmental and financial
challenges

A dry summer, followed by one of the longest and coldest winters on record, led to
unprecedented levels of operational activity with colleagues literally working round-the-
clock to protect customers’ water and sewerage services, whilst minimising the impact of
our activites on the environment

These severe weather events were the first real test of the new organisational structure we
implemented 1n 2009/10 with the aim of delivering a step change n our performance in
AMP5 The new organisational structure served us well, ensuring our response to these
events was measured, controlled and had a mimimal effect on customers’ services

Despite hosepipe bans being introduced in other parts of the UK, there were no
restrictions on customers’ water supplies in the Yorkshire region in 2010/11

During the prolonged period of cold weather which gripped the region over the winter,
relatively few customers had their water supplies interrupted for more than 12 hours as a
result of problems with our pipes and treatment works

Another benefit of the new organisational structure ts that it has allowed the business to
recover quickly from these events and we have already renewed our focus on delivering
operational excellence in everything we do

We have had one of our best ever years for compliance at our waste water treatment
works, and also for the quality of water that we provide to our customers It was the first
year of the new Service Incentive Mechanism, the new Ofwat measure of customer
satisfaction, against which we performed very well

QOur strategic direction highlights the importance of operational excellence as the
cornerstone of our success In the future It also includes an ambition to grow the business
by investing to iImprove service and the environment and to take on new responsibilities

There are big opportunities ahead The revised Bathing Water Directive and the transfer
from 1 October 2011 of responsibility for private sewers allow us to take responsibility for
things that impact directly on our customers and on the environment We are also
continuing to contribute to the current Government debate on the future of the water
industry

With all this iIn mind we have developed a new wvision for our business, “Taking
responsibility for the water environment for good” This 1s an evolution of our previous
vision, “To be clearly the best water company in the UK, and points to growth which 1s
centred on an economically, environmentally and socially sustainable water sector

We are developing initiatives which will articulate our vision, dnve out-performance and
deliver more sustainable outcomes for the business over the longer term In addition, we
have developed robust plans to address those areas where our operational performance
can be \improved
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We have a great opportunity to builld on what we have learnt over the past year and are in
a strong position to be an even more successful business in the future

Kevin Whiteman
Chairman
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OUR BUSINESS

ssssss Operahonal boundary Suungu service

We serve the Yorkshire region - from Whitby in the narth to Chesterfield on the edge of
Derbyshire in the south, and from Bridlington on the east coast to Ingleton in the west

Yorkshire Water manages the collection treatment and distnbution of the region’'s water
We supply around 1 24 billion litres of drinking water every day and then collect, treat and
return around 1 biilion litres of waste water safely back into the environment

We serve a population of approximately 4 9 million people, as well as around 130,000
businesses

Our work 1n managing this natural resource for the benefit of our customers and the
environment requires careful, long-term planning

Over the penod 2010 to 2015 we will Invest around £3 5 billion on operating and improving
the reglon's water and sewerage infrastructure, providing a major boost to the local
economy
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BUSINESS STRATEGY

Operational Excellence

Most efficient, lowest cost
- Bast customer expensnce
100% Compliance
- Zero acctdents
*World class asset management
-The best people and technology

Grow Qur Business Grow Qur Influence

Invest 1o improve service and the environment Make the case for new responsibiities
Tzke on new additional responsibilities and investment
- the'right things’ Protect our existing asset ownership
Maximise shareholder retum Enhanced stakeholder influencing

C J

Operational Excellence

This pursuii of ‘operational excellence’ 1s the foundation and comerstone of our company’s
future strategy, ensuring that we are well placed to protect our extsting asset ownership
and to make the case for new opportunities to grow our asset base and deliver further
benefits to our customers and the environment

This means being the most efficient in everything we do, providing a consistent and
seamless customer expenence, embedding world class asset management, achieving
100% compliance, having a zero accident culture and developing and employing the best
people and technology

Growing cur business

We are a progressive and aspirational company and want to grow our business by taking
on new responsibilities which will provide further benefits to our customers and the
environment, whilst maximising returns for our investors

This will mean loaking both outwardly for the nght opportunities to grow, and inwardly by
improving our research and development and knowledge of our asset base

From 1 October 2011, the responsibility for private sewers will transfer to water
companies, internally we are calling this “The Big Transfer' This 1s an example of the kind
of new responsibilities and investment we are looking for It fits very well with our core
focus on service and the environment, will benefit our customers and will increase the size
of our asset base

Our focus on value and more for less will continue, ensuring we are well placed to deliver
value for money to our customers, rather than simply offering the lowest price

However, 1t Is important that we continue to ‘Strike the Right Balance’, a core guiding
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principle of our 25 year Strategic Direction Statement While we will look to grow our
business and deliver further social and environmental benefits, it 1s important that we
invest in the ‘night things’ and we will not pursue growth as an end in itself, If the benefits to
our customers and the environment are not clearly justified

Growing our influence

To grow our business we need to be able to make the case for new responsibiities and
investment with our stakeholders

New obligations, such as the transfer and adoption of private sewers, will come from
influencing Government ministers, customers and regulators to support our proposals and
the case for change In the current regulatory environment, we either need new legal
obligations or must be able to demonstrate to Ofwat that customers are willing to pay for
the resuiting service iImprovements

This activity involves tracking, understanding, assessing and mapping external issues,
quantifying the extent of the opportunities and threats and understanding the views and
wants of stakeholders and regulators Based on this analysis, it will then be possible to
priontise 1ssues and develop policy positions and influencing strategies to deliver them

We must also protect our existing asset ownership The company’s strategy has provided
value for all over recent years and demonstrated the benefits to customers, investors and
the environment of integrated asset ownership

Organisational changes

In order to deliver this strategy, Yorkshire Water restructured the operational business into
two new areas with effect from 1 Apnl 2010, Preduction and Customer Service &
Networks, and concentrated capital delivery into a new Asset Delivery Unit

We believe that these changes, together with further investment in our people and
technology, will help to create the nght platform for further signfficant improvements in
customer service, asset management and capital out-performance

Vision and values

In the light of the company’s strategic direction, dunng 2010/11 the company’s executive
team reviewed the company vision

Following the involvement of colleagues, stakeholders and customers, the new vision for
the company Is “Taking responsibility for the water environment for good”, which builds on
the success of our previous vision “to be clearly the best water company n the UK’

To date our new vision has been shared internally with colleagues and it 1s also the title of
our influencing document, which sets out our contnbution to the debate on the future of the
water industry
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

2010/11 saw a good start to AMP5 (Asset Management Plan 2010-2015) despite the
operational challenges discussed above Operational excellence remains the key to
unlocking new opportunities - opportunities for our people, opportunities for our customers
and stakeholders, opportunities for our contract partners and opportunities for us to grow
our influence and ultimately our business

Our new business model for AMPS, coupled with a new capital investment programme,
new contract partners and new, improved ways of working, provides a sound platform on
which to achieve our vision

Key performance indicators

Target Current Previous

year year
Overall customer satisfaction 455 4.36 -
Overall drinking water quality 99 975% 99.972% 99 961%
Waste water treatment works compliance 100% 99.68% 100%
Accidents -

- major and over 3 day accidents 13 15 11

- all accidents 75 192 135

Explanation of measures provided in Appendix to Business Review on pages 17 and 18
Most efficient, lowest cost
The company's financial performance 1s described in detail on page 10

We remain a financially robust and resilient business In 2010/11 we invested an additional
£6 2m to fund iImprovements in our leakage performance and incurred an additional £5 9m
In extra costs due to the impact of the severe winter which gripped the Yorkshire regton
over Christmas and the New Year These additional costs were off-set by revenue
generated from increased consumption earlier in the year due to the prolonged dry
weather Also, we did not see the decline in business customer demand that was forecast
at the start of the year against the backdrop of a challenging, national, economic climate

Best customer experience

There were no restrictions on water use in Yorkshire in 2010/11, despite the region’s water
resources coming under great pressure

High summer demand combined with below average long-term rainfall saw the region’s
reservorr stocks fall to 60% at the end of August, with all reservoirs faling below their
normal control lines

Working closely with the Environment Agency we were able to increase the amount of
water we put into supply to meet customer demand without adversely impacting on the
region’s water environment

The prolonged cold spell and subsequent thaw over the Christmas and New Year period
resulted in an unprecedented amount of water being put into supply On 28 December
output peaked at 1,795MI/d, with an average daily demand that week of 1,633MI/d — some
333Ml/d more than we would normally expect
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This extraordinary increase in demand meant that production rates at our water treatment
works reached levels never seen before To maximise production, many of our treatment
works were manned round-the-clock

In October 2010, Ofwat published its levels of service report for 2009/10 which confirmed
that, once again, we had the lowest levels of wntten complaints of any of the water and
sewerage companies

Qur performance in relation to Ofwat’'s new Service Incentive Mechanism was good, with
our aggregated score for 2010/11 being 4 38, which ranks us 2" out of the ten water and
sewerage companies and 7" out of all 21 companies (including water only)

In April 2010, we launched a major communications campagn to demonstrate to
customers the good value for money that their water charges represent The campaign
involved TV, radio and billboard advertising, as well as direct mail and social media

Our ‘Bin It, Don’t Flush It" campaign won a national award from the Chartered Institute of
Public Relations

Our ‘One Million Green Fingers’ environmental campaign won The Guardian newspaper’s
Public Service Award for Citizenship and Volunteering

In QOctober 2010 we launched ‘The Green Classroom' — a brand new educational resource
to teach children about the water cycle and how to use water wisely

100% compliance

2010 was yet another year-on-year improvement for waste water treatment works
comphance Three of the four quarters saw us record our lowest number of determinand
fallures ever Two waste water treatment works failed their numeric consents in 2010

In October 2010 we were informed by Ofwat that our leakage target for the previous year
2009/10 had been revised from 297Ml/d to 275MI/d We had out-turned at 294Mi/d

At the same time, Ofwat also announced that the serviceability of our water network had
moved from ‘'stable’ to ‘marginal’, largely as a result of an increase in the number of mains
bursts and interruptions to supply lasting longer than 12 hours

In response, we announced plans to invest an additional £33m to address these 1ssues

The plan involved more than doubling the resources avalable to find and fix leaks,
adopting a more proactive approach to pressure management and the roll-out of an
extensive mans renewal programme to replace some of our oldest underground water
mamns

Within a month we began implementing the plan with a view to reducing leakage to
297MI/d by the end of the financial year However with the cold winter weather of 2010/11
turning out to be even worse than that of the previous year, we finally out-turned at
325Mi/d
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Zero accidents

In 2010/11, 15 major or over 3 day accidents under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and
Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995 (RIDDOR) were reported to the Health and
Safety Executive

Over the past year our health and safety activity has centred around three areas -
performance, people and process We have developed a single, company-wide health and
safety performance report to improve the visibility of performance across the business We
have also reviewed our ability to provide the business with coaching and leadership on
hazard identification, nsk control systems and incident prevention

From a process point of view we have made improvements to health and safety databases
to allow better collection and analysis of information and we have simplified the root cause
analysis documentation process This will speed up the reporting and documenting
process, improve investigation quality and allow for greater clanty of learning from the
incidents that do occur

In addition, we have been reviewing and developing our occupational health and safety
management systems to understand our gaps and to make sure that we are aligned with
the HSE's ‘Successful Health and Safety Management’ approach

World class asset management

Dunng 2010/11 we have delivered a capital programme of £311m (gross) and £300 3m
(net of all grants and contnbutions), including £0 2m for preparation for the transfer of
private sewers This 1s a 7% out-performance from the capital expenditure allowed in
PRO9 FD Price Limits Within the year, we have made good progress on our drinking
water qualty programme and are shghtly ahead in our automated meter reading
programme

In November 2010, Yorkshire Water officially launched its £110m programme of
investment to not just meet but exceed the requirements of the Revised Bathing Water
Directive The company has created a new partnership board consisting of representatives
from the Environment Agency, Welcome To Yorkshire and several local authorities

The best people and technology

In 2010/11 we completed the implementation of a new organisational design centred
around two key business units — Production and Customer Service & Networks — and n-
sourced 174 employees from Canllion, the company responsible for dehvering our
electrical and mechanical contract

We continue to have high levels of employee satisfaction at Yorkshire Water, with 67%
regarding it as a “great place to work”

The dedication and commitment of colleagues across the business was demonstrated
during the prolonged cold spelt that grnipped the Yorkshire region over Christmas and the
New Year

Many colleagues worked tirelessly, often in appallng weather conditions, to answer
customers’ calls for help and protect their water and sewerage services Many sacrificed
their holidays and festive celebrations to do whatever was required to maintain customers’
water supplies
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Our contract partners responded in a similar fashion, quickly dentifying additional
resources to deal with the increase in operational activity

In preparation for the transfer of private sewers in October 2011, Yorkshire Water and
Loop Customer Management Ltd launched a major drive to recruit more than 200 new
employees The transfer of private sewers 1s an enormous undertaking, with Yorkshire
Water taking on responsibility for an estimated additional 22,000kms of sewers

Our Information Technology Department was named 'IT Department of the Year' at the
2010 UK IT Industry Awards
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Key financial performance indicators

2011 2010
Operating profit (Em) 313.6 3735
Net debt (Em) 2,956.3 3,074 1
Adjusted net debt to Regulatory Capital Value 73.7% 62 1%

(RCV)
Explanation of measures provided in Appendix to Business Review on page 17

Financial performance

Turnover decreased by 0 2% to £867 4m (2010 £869 4m), compared with an average
tanff decrease of 0 9% The decline in demand for water from business customers during
the year due to the continued challenging ecoromic environment was lower than
anticipated Of the £867 4m, £402 7m related to water services, £457 Om related to
sewerage services and £7 7m was from non regulated business

Operating profit decreased by 16 0% to £313 6m (2010 £373 5m) driven by an increase in
operating costs The increase in operating costs included increases to the non domestic
rates charge as a result of the Valuation Office five yearly revaluation, the bad debt charge
as a result of the economic climate, and a payment towards the pension deficit The
additional rates and pensions costs were allowed by Ofwat within the final determination
We still expect to outperform Ofwat’s target for operating costs over the 5 year penod

Operating costs also include an exceptional cost of £5 9m relating to the severe winter
weather A prolonged and severe winter period with snowfall arrving in the Yorkshire
region during November 2010 resulted in significant additional costs being incurred
relating to the management and repair of burst pipes and the resulting additional pumping
costs to ensure customers were not without water The costs incurred over and above the
costs anticipated for that time of the year have been classified as exceptional

Net interest payable increased from £167 Om in 2009/10 to £231 2m 1n 2010/11 before
exceptional tems Of the £64 2m increase, £59 5m relates to the impact on index linked
bonds and swaps of higher RPl than expenenced during 2009/10 This 1s a combination
of a higher average rate of inflation during 2010/11 of 5 0% compared to 0 5% in 2009/10,
as well as the full year impact of the whole business securntisation in July 2009 and
additional index inked debt raised in Apnl 2010

Yorkshire Water holds certain index linked swaps with a nominal value of £1,288m which
had a market value of £867 2m out of the money at 31 March 2011 At the balance sheet
date it was concluded that 43 3% (£375 5m) of the swaps did not represent an effective
hedge and an onerous contract provision has therefore been recognised within the
accounts, £40 Om within borrowings and £335 5m within provisions in respect of an
onerous contract provision The onerous contract provision has increased during the year
by £40 Om, which has been charged in the profit and loss account as a non-operating
exceptional cost

The tax credit of £75 3m represents a reduction of £113 6m compared to the prior year
(2010 charge of £38 3m} Of this tax credit, £16 1m relates to current tax and £59 2m to
deferred tax The current tax credit reflects prior year adjustments and the receipt of group
relief from other group companies free of charge The deferred tax credit reflects the
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reduction in the deferred tax provision foliowing the change in the future rate of corporation
tax from 28% to 26%

Regulated capital investment for the year was £300 3m (2010 £262 Om) This ts below the
level assumed in Ofwat's Final Determination of pnces due to the rephasing of some
schemes over the five year asset management plan (AMP) All regulatory outputs have
been achieved with the exception of phase two of the East Coast Pipeline which 1s delayed
due to significant archaeological finds along the route Rewvised completion dates have
been discussed with Ofwat

Capital structure

During April 2010 Yorkshire Water issued bonds, raising £635m, including £450m of class
B debt following successful investor roadshows The Yorkshire Water business plan for
2010/11 expected £238m of class B debt to be raised, but with signficant demand from
investors and low Interest rate coupons available it was agreed to raise the additional
funds whilst market conditions were positive

As part of the process each Ratings Agency confirmed that the ratings for bonds 1ssued by
Yorkshire Water were stable, Class A bonds remain at “A” ratings and Class B bonds are
BBB+ with Fitch, BBB with S&P and Baa3 (BBB- equivalent) with Moodys

The proceeds of the 1ssuance were used to repay existing drawings on the capital
expenditure facility, distribute £550m to Kelda Holdco Ltd by way of internal loan, and the
balance to repay the principal on the 2010 bond, due In late Apni

The total net debt at 31 March 2011 was £2,956 3m (2010 £3,074 1m), this includes an
upstream loan to Kelda Holdco Ltd Adjusted net debt, excluding internal loans and
unamortised debt 1ssue costs, 1s used to calculate geanng ratios to comply with the bank
covenants Adjusted net debt at 31 March 2011 was £3,629 6m (2010 £2,828 3m) The
adjusted debt to Regulatory Capitat Value (RCV) ratio must remain less than 80% at 31
March 2011 under the terms of the bank covenant Actual adjusted debt to RCV at 31
March 2011 was 73 7% (2010 62 1%)

Dividend payments were £46 9m durnng the year (2010 £211 0m} No final dwvidend 1s
proposed In respect of 2010/11 At 31 March 2011 Yorkshire Water had profit and loss
account reserves of £827 9m (2010 £756 5m)

Accounting policies

The company accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies
described in note 1 to the accounts

Treasury policy

The company’s treasury operations are controlled centrally for the group by a treasury
department which operates on behalf of all companies controlled by the ulimate parent
Activities are carmed out in accordance with approved board policies, guidelines and
procedures Treasury strateqy 1s designed to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest
rates, preclude speculaton and to source and structure the group's borrowing
requirements

The group uses a combination of fixed capital, retained profits, long term loans, finance

leases and bank facilities to finance its operations Any funding required 1s ratsed by the
group treasury department in the name of the appropnate company, operating within the
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bank covenants Funds raised may be lent to or from the company at commercial rates of
interest Cash surplus to operating requirements 1s invested in short term instruments with
institutions having a long term rating of at least A- or A3 and a short term rating of at least
A1 or P1ssued by Standard and Poor's and Moody's respectively

LOOKING FORWARD

Our new vision, “Taking responsibility for the water environment for good”, 1s a Kelda-wide
vision and points to growth which 1s centred on an economically, environmentally and
socially sustainable water sector

o Taking responsibiity Caring for water as a precious resource

o The water environment Thinking about water and sewage in the context of
the whole environment and playing a bigger role in the water environment

o For good Finding the best and most sustainable way to proceed in the
long-term

We are developing intiatives which will articulate this vision and which will also dnve
business out-performance Focusing on asset management, carbon and energy
management and water demand management will deliver efficiencies in years 3, 4 and §
of the AMP and also drive more sustainable cutcomes for the business over the longer
term

Robust plans are being developed in 2011/12 for each of these intiatives which will be
implemented the following year

o Asset management — This project will bring together activity currently being
undertaken across the business to develop a cross company asset
management strategy which will lead to a single model for asset
management

o Carbon and energy — This project will ensure that we drive significant
carbon and energy reduction and will ensure that risks are understood and
managed

o Demand management — This project will seek to reduce the sustainable
level of leakage and develop a significant customer water conservation
initiative based on sound economics

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

None of the nsks discussed below are considered likely to have a sigruficant impact on the
short or long term value of the company in the iImmedate future

We classify principal nsks in six categories
Changes to the regulatory environment,
Changes in legislation,

Chmatic changes,

Changes in technology,

Social influences, and

Supplier markets

12
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Changes to the regulatory environment
Transfer of Private Sewers

From 1 October 2011 we will become responsible for an estimated additional 22,000km of
pipeline on top of the 33,000km of public sewers already looked after — a significant
change to our asset base

We have established a dedicated implementation project team to deliver this transfer The
team has engaged internal business stakeholders to understand the requirements for the
increased activity levels and has been working closely with external stakeholders

Revised Bathing Water Directive

From 2015 the EU's revised Bathing Water Directive comes into force, which ams to
improve the quality of coastal waters Bathing waters wili be classified by the Environment
Agency as either poor, sufficient, good or excellent We are the only UK water company
aiming for ‘excellent’

Our £110 milion investment programme for the east coast was launched last year to
improve our assets, and how we manage them, at 20 designated beaches along 100km of
coastline from Staithes to Withernsea

Ofwat Review

Yorkshire Water submitted evidence to the review of Ofwat undertaken in October 2010
The review sought evidence of Ofwat’s role and activities in the following areas

Statutory framework and decision making,

Sustainable development,

Relations with other regulators and water and sewerage companies,
Protecting, serving and representing customers, and

Value for money

The government 1s currently considering the responses to the Ofwat Review and will bring
forward any changes in its Water White Paper expected later in 2011

Changes in legisiation
Water White Paper

By December 2011, the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) have
committed to examine the conclusions of the Cave and Walker Reviews and publish a
White Paper on the reform of the water industry The White Paper will examine more
efficient uses of water and protection for poorer households The intention 1s to introduce
suitable legislation as soon as parllamentary time allows from April 2012

Natural Environment White Paper
In June 2011 the Government published a Natural Environment White Paper setting out
measures to protect wildlife, promote green spaces and wildlife corndors, value natural

capital and produce an analysis of the state of the UK's natural asset base (the National
Ecosystems Assessment)

13
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Environmental legisiation

Government and European policy is increasingly focused on the environmental agenda,
which creates both opportunities and challenges for Yorkshire Water New discharge
standards continue to be a possibility, although the recent European Court decision to not
designate the Humber Estuary as a sensitive zone means that new large scale European
legislation 1s not iImminent However, there are a number of directives in the pipeline,
focusing on drinking water standards and levels of service

Local Government elections

In May 2011 Local Government elections took place across Yorkshire The major changes
in pohtical control were

e The Liberal Democrats lost overall control of Hull City Council and leadership of
Sheffield and York Councils,

« The Conservatives took control of Harrogate and Ryedale Councils, and

+ Labour took total control of Sheffield, York, Leeds and Hull City Councils

Yorkshire Water will engage with the political and administrative leadership of all councils
as part of its annual local authonty contact programme

Climatic changes
Chmate change — carbon reduction

Yorkshire Water 1s committed to managing its carbon emissions We are investing in
renewable energy generation technologies such as combined heat and power (CHP)
which we use to produce low carbon energy from sewage sludge We are also reducing
our energy needs through more efficient techmques and processes

The Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme {CRC) came into operation
in Apnl 2010 The Government announced important changes to the scheme in October
2010, effectively introducing a new carbon tax This change to the CRC will increase
Yorkshire Water’s costs

Chimate change — adaptation

Yorkshire Water recognises that, in the long-term and without advance preparations,
climate change could challenge our core water and wastewater services We therefore
established a strategic pnonty to adapt to cimate change We are carrying out many
activities (n this area, for example we are investing to improve the resiience of critical
assets and we are carrying out significant research to develop our understanding

The Government identified Yorkshire Water as one of ninety organisations who are
responsible for assets and services of cntical importance to soclety We were asked to
report on our preparations for ¢climate change under the Adaptation Reporting Powers in
the Climate Change Act (2008) In January 2011 we submitted our adaptation report to
Defra, 'Maintaining levels of service in the changing cimate’ Feedback from Defra
supported our approach and agreed with our plans to continue addressing this matter

Natural England

Natural England was one of the Government Agencies identffied for substantial reform
under the Coalition Government The immediate impact 1s a 32% reduction in their staff

14
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over two years and a review of their pnonties and working procedures In response we are
discussing the management of biodiversity data and the extensive wildlife designations
such as Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI's) in Yorkshire to ensure we continue to
have access to the latest information for our business planning, processes and decisions

Water consumption

Over the past few years local businesses and some domestic customers have made
increasing efforts to manage and reduce ther water consumption Although the key driver
of annual consumption remains weather patterns (e g hot, dry summers and cold winters),
water conservation i1s increasingly the norm and may place further downward pressure on
water consumption and income

As part of our new vision, “Taking responsibility for the water environment for good”, we
recognise the value of water to our society We are therefore working on various demand
management activities, including leakage reduction and other water conservation
measures

Changes in technology

Increasingly organisations are quickly brought to account by customers and the media
This trend has been assisted by the development of social networking sites such as
Facebook, YouTube and Twitter which allow pressure groups to form quickly, share their
views and form opinions

Dealing with thus new form of dialogue and engagement will be an increasing challenge for
our corporate communications over the next five years We will be monitoring online
conversations across social media channels to understand customer sentiment and
provide help and advice where we can

Over the last five years we have seen a 20% year on year increase in website usage, with
over one million customers visiting our website each year to pay bills, send meter readings
and request water saving packs

Social influences

Public confidence

With the effects of a changing climate becoming more visible, the public are increasingly
likely to demand more involvement and a stronger say in the provision of water and waste
water services Public activism will be highly relevant as we attempt to create advocacy to
dnive further investment and solve customers' problems

The skills agenda

Increasingly Yorkshire Water has found it challenging to recrut new employees with
appropriate skills and experience for specific parts of the business Engineering and
operational skilled labour 1s increasingly difficult to recruit as the pool of potential recruits
shrinks, particularly those with science, technology, engineenng and maths qualifications

To help buld a highly skilled workforce for the future, Yorkshire Water recruited nine
apprentices in 2010 and intends to take on a further 11 1n 2011

15




Business Review

Bad debt

In Iight of the current economic conditions and In particular the contraction of the publc
sector In Yorkshire it 1s predicted that higher levels of unemployment will continue This
will have an impact on our customers and their ability to pay their water bills

Supplier markets
A global economy

The national and international economic uncertainties may put pressure on Yorkshire
Water's input costs Yorkshire Water has significant and growing energy demands thus
making the business model exposed to energy pnce fluctuations

As clean and waste water regulatory standards become more stringent the energy
requirements of conventional treatment techniques tends to increase This correlation of
Increasing regulatory demands and energy usage will provide a challenging environment
over the next ten to twenty years, particularly as the Carbon Reductton Commitment
(CRC) has been implemented and we can expect increased 'carbon tax' in future
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KPI Glossary of Terms

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Operating profit

Operating profit 1s disclosed in the Yorkshire Water profit and loss account
Net debt

Net debt represents the value of loans and finance leases owed to third parties and other
companies within the group, offset by available cash

Adjusted net debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV)

The RCV 1s determined by Ofwat and 1s the value of the capital base on which a return 1s
allowed for pnice setting purposes The values are calculated and published annually by
Ofwat This ratio expresses adjusted net debt as a proportion of the RCV, both of which
are published in Yorkshire Water's audited accounts

NON FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Overall customer satisfaction

The company recognises the value of listening to customers In order to delver
improvements that not only meet but surpass expectations Customer satisfaction 1s
monitored on a regular basis using a results of a survey conducted by Ofwat

The KPI 1s an average satisfaction score based on a random sample of customers
surveyed by Ofwat All respondents will have contacted the company and had their 1ssue
resolved

The score ts based on the response to the following question

“Taking everything into account how satisfied were you with the way they handled this
enquiry/contact?”

Very satisfied

Fairly satisfied

Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied
Fairly dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

2~ NWHA O

Water quality

The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) regulates public water suppliles in England and
Wales It 1s responsible for assessing the qualty of drinking water, taking enforcement
action if standards are not being met and appropnate action when water 1s unfit for human
consumption

The Government has set legal standards for dnnking water in the Water Qualty
Regulations Most of these standards come directly from European law and are based on
World Health Organisation guidelines The UK has additional standards to safeguard the
already high quality of water in England and Wales The standards are strict and generally
include wide safety margins They cover
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Business Review - Appendix
KP! Glossary of Terms

Bactena,

Chemicals such as nitrate and pesticides,
Metals such as lead, and

Appearance and taste

The measure we use Is for overall dnnking water quality which consists of the average
compliance values for 39 different parameters

Waste water treatment works compliliance

The Environment Agency issues consents to allow the discharge of treated water from
waste water treatment works The three principal consented Iimits are for suspended
solids, biochemical oxygen demand and ammonia A range of other substances may be
imited depending on the type of discharge This indicator shows loads for the following
determinands
« suspended solids, which can blanket the nver bed, thereby destroying fish habitat,
+ biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), which 1s a measure of the amount of oxygen
consumed In water - usually by organic pollution - and therefore reflects the quality
of the water,
e ammonia, which I1s toxic to fish, and
« phosphate, which promotes excessive plant growth which upon decomposition
strips oxygen from the water

All waste water treatment works are monitored for compliance with therr discharge
consents and the receiving waters are monitored to assess therr compliance with water
quality targets The frequency of monitoring depends on the size of the treatment works,
small works are monitored on a quarterly basis and large works are monitored every week

Reportable and notifiable accidents

The Health and Safety Commission is responsible for health and safety regulation in Great
Britan The Health and Safety Executive and local government are the enforcing
authonties who work in support of the Commission

The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995
(RIDDOR) places a legal duty on employers to notify and report some work related
accidents, diseases and dangerous occurrences

These Include, amongst other things, accidents where employees are absent from work for
three days or more

All accidents include minor accidents which do not require reporting to the Health and
Safety Executive e g accidents resulting in less than three days absent
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Directors’ Report
For the Year Ended 31 March 2011

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the company for
the year ended 31 March 2011

Financial results for the year
Profit for the financial year was £117 7m (2010 £126 1m)
Business review

A review of the development and performance of the business of the company, including
strategy, the financial performance during the year, key performance indicators, health and
safety policy, forward-looking statements and a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties facing the company are set out in the business review on pages 10 to 16.

The purpose of this annual report 1s to provide information to the company's stakeholders
and contans certan forward looking statements with respect to the operations,
performance and financial condition of the company By their nature, these statements
involve uncertainty since future events and circumstances can cause results to differ from
those anticipated Nothing in this report should be construed as a profit forecast

Principal activities

The directors’ report should be read in conjunction with the business review The principal
activities of the company are the supply of clean water and the treatment and disposal of
waste water in Yorkshire, for which the company is the water and sewerage undertaker
The majonty of the company's operations are regulated by Ofwat

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing these financial
statements, including any changes, are shown below

Richard Flint Chief Executive

Liz Barber (appotnted 24 November 2010) Finance & Regulation Director
Graham Dixon

Alan Harrnison

Jonathan Hodgkin (resigned 27 May 2010)

Mark Penny

Charlie Haysom and Pamela Rogerson were appointed directors on 27 Apni 2011

Non executive Directors

Kevin Whiteman Chairman
Roger Hyde

Martin Havenhand

Kathryn Pinnock

Rhys Evenden

Holly Koeppel

Scott Auty (appointed 28 July 2010)

Mark Lorkin (appointed 28 July 2010)

Jane Seto (appointed 28 July 2010)
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The company has directors’ and officers’ insurance in place
Dividends

The total dividend of £46 9m pad to Yorkshire Water's immediate parent company,
Yorkshire Water Services Holdings Ltd, in the year related to payments to group
companies to fund the payment of interest and loan repayment This compares with
£211 0m in 2009/10, of which £27 8m was to fund the payment of interest

No final dividend for the year 1s proposed
The company’s dividend policy 1s to

- deliver real growth In dividends recognising the management of economic risks,
the continuing need for investment of profits in the business and to pay additional
dividends which reflect efficiency improvement, and particularly improvements
beyond those assumed in the determination of price limits,

- to pay dividends In respect of the non-appointed business reflecting the profitability
of those activities, and

- where it 1s foreseeable that the company will have sufficient profits available for
distnbution, to continue to pay annual dividends consistent with this policy, the
company can also pay special dividends as part of any capital reorganisation
which the board concludes to be in the best interests of the company and complies
with its obligations under its licence

The directors consider that the dividends paid in the year are in accordance with these
principles

Reserves

The profit for the year of £117 7m has been transferred to the profit and loss reserve,
bringing the balance held in this reserve to £827 9m (after dividends in the year of £46 9m
and a £0 6m movement in the revaluation reserve)

Research and development

The company undertakes a programme of research in pursuit of improvements in service
and operating efficiency In 2010/11, £4 5m was committed to research and development
including £3 7m on fixed assets

Fixed assets

The directors are aware that the value of certain land and buildings in the balance sheet
may not be representative of their market value However, a substantial proportion of land
and bulldings comprises specialised operational properties and structures for which there
1s no ready market and it 1s not therefore practicable to provide a full valuation

Movements in fixed assets are shown In note 9 to the accounts and include transfers to
KeyLand Developments Lid, which have all been made on the basis of independent
external valuations obtained specifically for the purpose and approved by Ofwat With
effect from 1 Apni 1996, only those transfers with a value of over £500,000 have been
subject to approval by Ofwat
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Revaluation of assets

In March 2009, Yorkshire Water re-valued its non specialised land and bulldings (1e non
operational land and buildings, including offices and rura! estates), resulting In an increase to
fixed assets of £52 7m and a corresponding increase in reserves The Manager of Land,
Property and Planning, a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(MRICS), has reviewed the carrying value at 31 March 2011 of Yorkshire Water's non
specialised land and bulldings and considers that no impairment or uplift would be required
to the accounts and the amounts booked on 31 March 2009 are not matenally different to
current market values

The Directors confirm that they know of no matenal change to the value of Yorkshire
Water's non specialised land and buildings to be disclosed within the accounts of
Yorkshire Water at 31 March 2011

These assets will continue to be revalued on a periodic basis, to comnctde with valuations
required for future Ofwat Periodic Reviews

Capital and infrastructure renewals expenditure

Total expenditure on regulated activities during the year amounted to £300 3m (2010
£262 Om) This excludes expenditure on non-regulated activities of £nil (2010 £0 3m)

Payment of suppliers

The company’s policy on the payment of suppliers 1s to ensure that all payments are made
in accordance with the terms and conditions agreed with supplers For construction
contracts, payment terms are covered by the appropnate Conditions of Contract, such as
NEC Form of Contract, ICE 6th Edition and Model Form of Conditions of Contract for
Process Plants ({ChemEng)

The payment day ratio (the figure, expressed n days, which bears the same proportion to
the number of days In the year as the amount owed to trade creditors at the year end
bears to the amounts invoiced by suppliers during the year) 1s 38 days (43 days in 2010)

Instrument of Appointment

Condition F of the company’s Instrument of Appointment as a water and sewerage
undertaker requires the company to publish regulatory accounting information in a
prescnibed format in addition to that required for the statutory accounts

Employees and employment policies

The company strives to create a positive working environment for all colleagues and
places great emphasis on open two-way communications It values involvement and
engagement at all levels, recognising that everyone in the business 1s valued for their
contribution and Is a potential source of innovation and change Internal consultation and
communication processes provide the key to this involvement

The company communications strategy 1s based on a ‘face to face first' approach and all
messages are delivered through ‘two-way’ channels, including regular ‘Team Talks' and
‘Talk Back' sessions with line managers and the Directors The company magazine
Connections 1s distnbuted throughout the business and ams to provide business news
through the eyes of the company’s employees
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Regular employee satisfaction surveys are undertaken throughout the company, using a
variety of survey tools including telephone-based, online and paper-based surveys
These surveys highight what 1s going weli and provide the company with valuable
information about where to place more emphasis to really make a difference to how people
feel at work

To promote successful employee relations, the company demonstrates its commitment to
effective and two way communication through its information and consultation framework
In addition to collective bargaining arrangements with its recognised trade union,
communication and consultative forums take place across the company, compnsing
elected (union and non-union) employees who meet regularly with directors and senior
managers

The company promotes freedom of association, principally through its diversity and
inclusion strategy The company’'s equalty and diversity, ‘open to all’, policy covers
gender, marital status, parental status, sexual onentation, race, colour, ethnic or national
origin, disability, age, religion or belief and trade union membership Yorkshire Water has
previously been recognised by winning the Personnel Today award for Diversity in the
Workplace and has also featured as a case study on a website created by the London
Development Agency for businesses in therr region We have an active approach to
keeping employees who become disabled in employment and our commitment to equal
opportunities for less able job applicants has been recogrised with the ‘double tick’
accreditation from the UK Employment Service

Key to achieving operational excellence and delivering out-performance 1s ensuring that
every individual understands their role and how they can make a difference whilst feeling
valued for their contribution We are committed to rewarding the right performance and we
adopt a ‘total reward’ approach to salary and benefits which are designed to be
competitive Performance related pay gives colleagues at all levels the opportunity to
share in the success of the business, through quarterly or annual bonus payments inked
to the achievement of individual and business plan targets

The company continually strives to attract, select and retain the best people Looking to
the future, there 1s a strong commitment and focus on proactively resourcing the business
by understanding future roles and skills requirements and ensuning that plans are in place
to meet our needs Our approach includes understanding people's career aspirations,
meeting development needs and actively mitigating resourcing challenges to ensure that
we retain our best talent In 2011/12 a further 11 apprentices and nine graduates will join
what are already successful programmes

The company places great emphasis on enhancing business performance by maximising
individual, team and orgamisational potential through skills development We are focused
on developing safety, technical, behavioural and leadership capability It 1s our belief that
everyone can demonstrate leadership skills This commitment 1s demonstrated through our
focus on leadership development for managers and senior managers across the business
and the company's commitment to embedding a coaching culture This enables people to
learn and grow by identifying and focusing on their own development areas The company
provides a wide range of development opportunities, including in-house and accredited
programmes to help employees develop the necessary skills, knowledge, values and
expertence to realise therr performance potential
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Health and safety

Yorkshire Water 1s committed to achieving high health and safety standards throughout its
business The management of health and safety issues operates in the context of the
health and safety policy adopted by the board and the system of internal control

The company operates within a framework of policy procedural requirements and must
have In place appropnate health and safety policies and procedures and provide
necessary information, instruction, training and supervision [n addition, the company
provides occupational health, safety and welfare advisory services for employees

Specific health and safety goals are also set within the business These goals include a
combination of reductions of accidents and working time lost as a result of accidents,
training delivery, internal safety audits and health promotion and survelllance programmes

Sentor management awareness and active employee involvement in health and safety 1s
fundamental to company success A Think Safety First programme was launched In
Yorkshire Water during 2006 and 1s further developed each year This programme
includes projects for sharnng personal accident expenences, promoting key safety
messages, managers leading by example, rewarding and recognising colleagues and
implementing a behavioural safety coaching process

Consultation with all employees via area and functional health and safety forum groups
and safety committees 1s actively encouraged Where possible, the intent Is for local
health and safety 1ssues to be discussed and resolved with ine management In Yorkshire
Water there are health and safety champtons who work alongside the Trade Union safety
representatives and line management This ensures that health and safety issues are
regularly discussed within each team in all business units

Our goal 1s to achieve zero accidents and the measures taken by the company are
intended to place emphasis on prevention and continuing wigilance Yorkshire Water has
again been awarded a Gold Medal (recognising eight consecutive Gold Awards) for
Occupational Safety from the Royal Soclety for the Prevention of Accidents for its
continued health and safety performance during 2010/11

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

As at the date of this report, as far as each director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware and each director has taken
steps as he or she should have taken as a director in order to make him or herself aware
of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the company’s auditors are aware of
that information
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Independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in
office and the board has passed a resolution confirming their reappointment

K‘ \JV\-Q/U—/’;C_-—

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Kevin Whiteman

Chairman

7 July 2011

Registered office  Western House, Halfax Road, Bradford BD6 25Z
Registered (n England no 2366682
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Corporate Governance

Throughout the year the board remained accountable to the company's shareholders for
maintaining standards of corporate governance The following is an explanation of the
measures taken by the company

The board of directors

The board held ten scheduled meetings during the year Additional meetings were held
where 1t was considered appropriate or where business needs required |n addition,
meetings of committees of the board were held when required The board had a schedule
of matters reserved for its decision

The board determines the company’s strategic objectives and key policies, and approves
the business plans for the company, intenm and final financial statements,
recommendations of dividends, significant investment and major new business proposals,
as well as significant organisational matters and corporate governance arrangements
There are clear levels of delegated authority, which enable management to take decisions
in the normal course of business

All new directors, where applicable, received an induction and traming on joining the
board, including information about the company and therr responsibilities, meetings with
key managers, and visits to the company’s operations There I1s an agreed procedure for
directors to take independent professional advice at the company’s expense In furtherance
of their duties 1n relation to board or committee matters Directors have access to the
company secretary who I1s responsible for ensuning that board procedures are followed
The directors receive full and timely access to all relevant information, including a monthly
board pack of operational and financial reports Direct access to key executives 1s
encouraged The company has directors’ and officers’ hability insurance in place

At the end of the year, the Yorkshire Water board comprised a non executive chairman,
five executive directors and eight further non executive directors

The board has delegated certain authonty to board committees as and when appropriate
The company does not have its own remuneration, nominations or audit committees but
these are operated at group level by Kelda Holdings L.td, the company’s ultimate parent
company

Kelda Holdings Ltd audit committee

Roger Hyde, who Is an independent non executive director, sits on the Kelda Holdings Ltd
audit committee and four group directors compnse the balance of the committee The
external auditors, the head of internal audit and the company secretary attend all
meetings The group finance and regulation director attends by invitation The committee
also meets with the external auditors without the presence of executive management when
it considers it necessary or appropnate to do so The committee charman reports on the
activites of the committee to the group board meeting immediately following each
committee meeting
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The audit committee’s key tasks include

» reviewing and monitoring of the integrity of the annual financial statements,

» reviewing the company's system of internal control, including financial, operational,
comphance and risk management,

« overseeing the company’s relationship with the external auditors, agreeing the nature
and scope of the audit and reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors, and

+ monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit function

In undertaking these tasks the committee receives and reviews work carried out by the
internal and external auditors and their findings Both the internal and external auditors
work to an annual plan developed n consultation with the committee In addition, the
committee reviews specific business areas and processes from time to time

The regular business of the audit committee includes consideration of reports on financial
statements, audit planning, the activities of internal audit and its key findings, and the
consideration of the operation of internal control processes

The independence and objectivity of the external auditors 1s considered on a regular basis,
with particular regard to the level of non audit fees

The group has adopted an auditors independence policy which establishes procedures
and guidance under which the company’s relationship with its external auditor 1s governed
so that the audit committee 1s able to satisfy itself that there are no factors which may, or
may be seen to, impinge upon the independence and objectivity of the audit process

Internal control

An ongoing process, In accordance with the guidance of the Turnbull Committee on
internal control, has been established for identifyng, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the company and this has been in place for the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts Strategic, financial,
commercial, operational, social, environmental and ethical nsks fall within the scope of this
process The process Is designed to manage rather than eliminate the nsk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss

The company has comprehensive and well defined control policies with clear structures,
delegated authonty levels and accountabilities

The company's risk management process ams to be comprehensive, systematic and

continuous, and based on constant monitoring of business nsk The key features of the

process Include the following

« The main risks facing the company are identified and recorded In a strategic sk
register together with the control mechanisms applicable to each nsk These are
collated from nsk registers maintained by individual businesses,

« There I1s clear allocation of management responsibility for nsk identification, recording,
analysis and control,

« The audit committee reviews the effectiveness of the systems which are in place and
reports to the group holding company board,

= An established nsk management forum, chaiwred by the group company secretary
operated during the year This was In transition to passing responsibility for nsk to
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operational business units throughout the group, reporting to the audit committee via
the executive team,

» Business units are required to report annually on principal business nsks and the
operation of control mechanisms, and

+ The internal audit department provides objective assurance and advice on nsk
management and control, and monitors the nsk management process

The audit committee reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the process on behalf of
the group holding company board

In addition to this process, the business Is subject to a quarterly comprehensive review by
the executive team, independent internal and external audits which were reported to the
executive team and the audit committee, an extensive budget and target-setting process, a
quarterly reporting and forecasting process reviewing performance against agreed
objectives, appropriate delegated authonty levels, established financial policies and
procedures, and other risk management policies and procedures such as health and
safety and environmental policies

Environment

The environmental policy of the company recognises that a sustainable water and waste
water business 1s dependent on environmentally sustainable operations It 1s therefore
committed to integrating enwvironmental best practice and continuous improvement n
environmental performance through the efficient, effective and proper conduct of its
business

Environmental performance 1s reported through the company’s website which 1s regularly
updated This can be viewed at www yorkshirewater com/our-environment aspx

Community

The company contributes actively to the communittes which it serves It encourages and
supports colleagues in volunteenng, chantable giving and community involvement One in
three employees 1s active In a wide range of supported community activities These
include a Speakers’ Panel and support to local education ranging from governor
appointments, and Right to Read in junior schools through to coaching at senior schools
and mentoning university students from diverse ethnic backgrounds

Going concern
After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation, given the nature of
the regulated water services business, that the company has adequate resources to

continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the accounts
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Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Turnover

Operating costs before exceptional costs
Exceptional operating costs

Total operating costs

Operating profit

Net interest payable and similar charges before
excepttonal costs

Non operating exceptional costs

Net interest payable and similar charges - total
Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

All of the above resuits relate to continuing activities

There 1s no matenal difference between the profit before tax and the profit for the year
stated above and their historical cost equivalents There 1s no matenal difference between
the historical cost depreciation charge and the actual depreciation charge for the year as a
result of the revaluation of certain tangible fixed assets

Note

N

2011 2010
£m £m
867.4 869 4
(547.9) (493 7)
(5.9) (2 2)
(553.8) (495 9)
313.6 3735
(231.2) (167 0)
(40.0) (42 1)
(271.2) (209 1)
42.4 164 4
75.3 (38 3)
117.7 126 1

Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

for the year ended 31 March 2011

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those included in the profit and loss

account (2010 £nil)
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2011

Note " 2011 2010
£m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 8 1.6 85
Tangible assets 9 4,357.8 4,280 0
Investments 10 0.1 01
4,365.5 4,288 6
Current assets
Stock 11 1.2 11
Debtors faling due within one year 12 160.0 2407
Debtors faling due after more than one year 12 928.9 2967
Debtors - total 12 1,088.9 537 4
Cash and short term deposits 14 45.4 58 8
1,135.5 597 3
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Short term borrowings 14 (63.3) (209 3)
Other creditors 13 (333.8) (274 1)
(397.1) (483 4)
Net current assets 738.4 1139
Total assets less current liabilities 5,103.9 4,402 5

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Long term borrowings 14 (3,578.6) (2,923 6)
Other creditors 13 (134.4) (1397)
(3,713.0) (3,063 3)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 16 (497.9) (517 1)
Net assets 893.0 822 1

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 17 10.0 100
Profit and loss reserve 18 827.9 756 5
Share based payment reserve 18 35 34
Revaluation reserve 18 51.6 522
Total shareholder's funds 18 893.0 822 1

The financial statements on pages 28 to 50 were approved by the board of directors on 7
July 2011 and signed on their behalfiby

Richard Flint Yorkshure Water Services Ltd
Chief Executive Officer istered in England no 2366682
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following paragraphs summarise the more important accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the accounts

Basis of preparation and accounting

The company's financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the
histoncal cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain tangible fixed assets, in
compliance with all applicable United Kingdom accounting standards (Finan¢ial Reporting
Standards ‘FRS’, Statement of Standard Accounting Practice ‘SSAP' and Urgent Issues
Task Force abstract ‘UITF) and, except where otherwise stated in the notes to the
accounts, with the Companies Act 2006

The accounting policies have been reviewed in accordance with the requirements of FRS
18 The drrectors consider that the accounting policies set out below remain most
appropnate to the company’s circumstances, have been consistently appled and are
supported by reasonable and prudent estimates and judgements

The financial statements present information about the company as an individual company
undertaking and do not contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group
The company 1s exempt from preparing group financial statements under Section 400 of the
Companies Act 2006 as it and its subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation
in the consolidated financial statements of its ullimate UK parent, Kelda Eurobond Co Ltd, a
company registered \n England and Wales

The accounts do not include a cashflow statement because the cashflows of the company
are consoldated In the cashflow statement of the Kelda Eurobond Co Ltd financial
statements in accordance with FRS 1 (Revised)

Turnover
Turnover compnises charges to customers for water, sewerage and other services excluding
value added tax and is denved only from the United Kingdom

Turnover I1s not recognised until the service has been provided to the customer Turnover
relates to charges due in the year, excluding any amounts paid in advance Turnover for
measured water charges includes amounts billed plus an estmation of the amounts unbilled
at the year end The accrual i1s estimated using a defined methodology based upon daily
average water consumption, which i1s calculated based upon historical biling information

No turnaver 1s recognised for unoccupied properties and neo bills are raised If a bill has
been i1ssued, and the company subsequently become aware that the property I1s
unoccupied, the bill and relevant turnover i1s cancelled Generally a property 1s classed as
void If It 1s unoccupied and unfurnished

Pensions

The company accounts for its pensions In accordance with FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” A
majority of the company’s employees participate in the Kelda Group Pension Plan (KGPP),
a group defined benefit pension scheme as described in Note 21 of the financial
statements The KGPP 1s a group multi-employer scheme, such that the company's
pension scheme's assets and hatilities are included with those of other companies In the
KGPP The company 1s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and habilities In
the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore accounts for the scheme
as If it was a defined contnbution scheme The KGPP closed to new members in 2006
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The company also provides a defined contribution scheme, Kelda Stakeholder+, which 1s
available to new and existing employees

Share based payments

Savings related share option scheme

In prior years, the then ultimate parent company, Kelda Group Ltd (formerly Pic), operated
a savings related share option scheme under which options were granted to employees
The farr value of options granted in exchange for employee services rendered was
recognised as an expense In Yorkshire Water's profit and loss account with a
corresponding credit to equity

The total amount expensed over the vesting penod was determined by the fair value of the
option at the date of the grant The farr value of the option calculated was determined by
use of mathematical modelling including the Black Scholes option pricing model

The group re-assesses its estimate of the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable at each balance sheet date Any adjustments to the original estimates are
recognised in the profit and loss account (and equity) No expense Is recognised for
awards that did not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting was conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition was satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied

During 2008/09 the scheme was closed following the acquisition of Kelda Group Plc by
Saltare Water Ltd Certain schemes have been allowed to continue untl the planned
matunty, with members choosing whether to continue contnbuting For any member who
has taken that option, charges to the profit and loss account will continue until the maturity
of the scheme For any other member who has opted to close their scheme, charges to the
profit and loss account ceased in the month that they chose to leave the scheme

For both share options the corresponding entries to equity represent capital contnbutions
from the parent company When the amounts are recharged by the parent, a corresponding
entry to reserves Is recorded

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure i1s wntten off in the profit and loss account in the
financial year in which it I1s incurred Expenditure on fixed assets relating to development
projects 1s wntten off over the expected useful ife of those assets

Taxation

The taxation charge 1s based on the result for the year as adjusted for disallowabte and non
taxable tems using current rates and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and for accounting purposes

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all tming differences that have onginated but not
reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation to
pay more or a nght to pay less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date,
subject to the following

e provision 1s made for gains on disposals of fixed assets that have been rolled over into
replacement assets only where, at the balance sheet date, there 1Is a commitment to
dispose of the replacement assets, and

« deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s
more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future
reversal of the underlying timing differences ¢an be deducted
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Deferred tax 1s calculated at the rates at which it 1s estimated that tax will anse based on
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date Deferred tax i1s discounted

Investments
Other fixed asset investments are stated at cost and reviewed for impairrment if there are any
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable

Intangible assets

Goodwill 1s the excess of the far value of the consideration paid for a business or an
associate over the far value of the identifiable assets and habilities acquired Goodwill s
recognised and amortised on a straight ine basis over its economic useful life, which
normally will not exceed 20 years Imparrment tests on the carrying value of goodwill are
undertaken at the end of the first full financial year following the acquisitton and n other
penods If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable When 1t 1s determined that the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the
recoverable amount, the excess 1s written off to the profit and loss account

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Tangible fixed assets compnised the following

Infrastructure assets
Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems being mains and sewers, impounding
and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams and sea outfalls

Expenditure on infrastructure assets to increase capacity or enhance the network and to
maintain the operating capability of the network in accordance with defined standards of
service I1s treated as a fixed asset addition and inciuded at cost after deducting grants and
contributions

Infrastructure assets are valued at cost, which represents the purchase price, less
accumulated depreciation The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets I1s the estimated
level of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating capability of the network based
on an independently certified asset management plan

Other tangible fixed assets

Following a change In accounting policy dunng 2008, residential properties, non-specialised
properties and rural estates held within land and buidings are held at valuation Other
tangible fixed assets are included at cost, which represents the purchase price, less
accumulated depreciation Finance costs incurred in respect of the construction of other
tangible fixed assets are expensed as incurred

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Depreciation I1s charged on other tangible fixed assets
(including those assets held at valuation, where approprate) on a straight-line basis over thetr
estimated economic lives, or the estimated useful economic lives of therr individual major
components, from the month following commussioning Useful economic lives are pnncipally
as follows

Builldings 25 - 60 years
Fixed plant 5 - 40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3-10years

Fixed plant, vehicles, mobile plant and ¢computers are classified as plant and equipment
within Note 9@ Assets under constructton are not depreciated until they are brought into use
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Residential properties, non-specialised properties and rural estates are held at valuation with
external valuations being undertaken on a penodic basis An intenm valuation 1S booked In
the intervening years If in the view of the directors there has been a matenal change

Leased assets

Assets which are financed by leasing agreements that transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee (finance leases) are capitalised in tangible fixed assets
and the corresponding capital cost 1s shown as an obligatton to the lessor In borrowings
Depreciation 1s generally charged to the profit and loss account over the shorter of the
estimated useful ife and the term of the lease [f the operational life of an asset I1s longer
than the lease term, and the agreement ailows an extension to that term, the asset may be
depreciated over its operational life The capital element of lease payments reduces the
obhigation to the lessor and the interest element 1s charged to the profit and loss account
over the term of the lease In proportion to the capital amount outstanding

All other leases are operating leases and the rentals are charged to the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease

Grants and contributions

Grants and contnbutions In respect of tangible assets, other than infrastructure assets as
described below, are deferred and credited to the profit and loss account by installments over
the expected economic useful lives of the related assets

Grants and contnbutions In respect of expenditure enhancing the infrastructure network are
apphed in reducing that expenditure This I1s not In accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
which requires tangible fixed assets to be shown at cost and hence grants and contnbutions as
deferred income The presentation 1s adopted because infrastructure assets do not have
determinable finite lives and therefore such grants and contributions would remain as liabilities
in perpetuty The directors consider that the company's presentation shows a true and fair
view of the investment in infrastructure assets The effect on the company’s balance sheet of
this departure 1s to decrease the net book value of tangible fixed assets by £393 7m (2010
£383 7m)

Grants and contributions received 1n respect of expenditure charged to the profit and loss
account during the year are included in the profit and loss account

Stock

Stock 1s stated at cost less any provision necessary to recognise damage and obsolescence
Work In progress Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour,
matenals, and an approprate proportion of overheads

Recepts in advance

Receipts in advance include the montes received from customers where the related turnover
has not yet been recognised and also grants and contnbutions recewved in relation to capital
schemes where the work has not yet commenced They are recognised within other creditors
until the related revenue or costs are recognised

Foreign currencies

Indvidual transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the
actual exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date Profits and losses on both individual currency transactions settled dunng the year
and unsettled monetary assets and liabilities are dealt with in the profit and loss account
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it 1s probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obhgation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provision 1s made In accordance with FRS 12 “Prowvisions, contingencies and commitments”
for self insured claims, including an estimate for claims incurred but not reported

Provisions also include index linked swaps novated from Saltare Water Ltd to Yorkshire
Water in August 2008 Under the terms of the agreement, the swaps were transferred to
Yorkshire Water at far value and are held in the balance sheet as a provision This provision
Is being amortised over the life of the swaps (38 years) and 1s not discounted

Financial instruments

Trade debtors and creditors

Trade debtors do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated recoverable amounts There is no intention to trade the
debtors Trade creditors are not interest bearing and are stated at their invoiced value

Interest rate swaps

Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the company’s exposure to fluctuations in interest
rates on its borrowings The amounts payable or receivable in respect of interest rate swaps
are accounted for on an accruals basis through adjustments to the interest expense of the
corresponding liability

Index linked swaps
Index linked swaps are intended to hedge Yorkshire Water's exposure to movements Iin
RPI against its LIBOR linked borrowings

Yorkshire Water applies hedge accounting for its swaps to the extent that there 1s sufficient
floating rate debt within Yorkshire Water, over the entire life of the swap, from existing or
expected future debt To the extent that there 1s insufficient floating rate debt and the mark
to mark valuation of the swap 1s negative, any exposure relating to the portion of the swap
that 1s not hedged 1s provided for in the balance sheet as an onerous contract provision

The swaps have three cashflows

. Six monthly receiwvable elements linked to LIBOR,
. Six monthly payable elements linked to RPI, and
. An RPi-linked final bullet payment that 1s payable on maturity of the instruments

Interest payments and receipts are accrued in the profit and loss account The RPI bullet 1s
calculated based on the RPI| at the measurement date, accrued in the profit and loss account
and recognised within long term borrowings

These swaps were novated to Yorkshire Water from Saltaire Water Ltd in August 2008 at
which time the swaps were out of the money by £308 9m This value was reflected In
Yorkshire Water's balance sheet as an intercompany debtor, with a provision for the same
amount The onerous contract provision above takes into account the unamortized novation
provision

The calculation of the onerous contract provision takes account of both the RPI swaps and
the interest rate (finance lease) swaps
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The company Is not required to prepare its financial statements in accordance with FRS 26
and apart from the prowisions noted above its index linked swaps are not recogmsed in the
financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP (Note 15)

2. OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profit (before exceptional costs) Is stated after (crediting)/charging

2011 2010
£m £m
Own work capitalised (31.6) (26 0)
Raw materials and consumables 227 17 6
Other external charges 2343 2226
Wages and salaries 71.3 66 1
Social securty costs 6.3 57
Pension costs (note 21) 25.9 166
Depreciation of fixed tangible assets (note 9)
On owned assets - infrastructure 59.6 a7 7
- other assets 151.7 1345
On assets held under finance leases - infrastructure 2.3 19
- other assets 9.1 g3
Operating lease charges - plant and equipment 19 20
- other 0.7 04
Amortisation of grants and contnibutions (3.1) (30)
Amortisation of goodwill on subsidiary undertakings (note 8) 0.9 09
Restructunng costs 0.2 01
Research and development 0.8 08
Other operating income (5.1) (3 5)
547.9 4937

Exceptional operating costs

Exceptional operating costs in the year ended 31 March 2011 of £5 9m relate to costs
incurred during the severe winter weather in December 2010 Exceptional operating costs
in the year ended 31 March 2010 of £2 2m related to restructuring costs

Services provided by the company’s auditors
Duning the year the company obtained the following services from its auditors at costs as
detailed below

2011 2010

£'000 £'000

Fees payable for the audit 132 114
Fees payable for taxation services 16 -
Fees payable for other services 50 -
198 114
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Average number of employees
The average number of persons employed by the company durnng the year was

2011 2010
Number Number
Average number of employees 2,329 2,132
3. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(excluding those histed below)
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments 1,367 1,566
The amounts In respect of the highest paid director are as follows
Emoluments 361 438

Rhys Evenden, Jane Seto, Mark Lorkin, Scott Auty and Holly Koeppel are non-executive directors of
Kelda Holdings Ltd and do not receive any emoluments for their service

All executives have service agreements which are terminable by the company on 12 months' notice

Dunng 2010/11, all except one executive director were contributory members of the Kelda Group
Pension Plan, a defined benefit scheme One director was a contributory member of the Kelda
Stakeholder Plus scheme (a money purchase scheme) The accrued pension benefit of the highest
paid director in 2010/11 was £61,178 (2010 £42,919) No directors have exercised share options
during the year (2010 nil)

4. NON OPERATING EXCEPTIONAL COSTS

Yorkshire Water holds certain index linked swaps with a nominal value of £1,289m which were out
of the money at 31 March 2011 by £867 2m At the balance sheet date it was concluded that
43 3% of the swaps (£375 5m of the £867 2m) did not represent an effective hedge The
unhedged portion has therefore been recognised within the balance sheet, £40 Om classified as
borrowings 1n relation to the RPI uplift to date and £335 5m classified as an onerous contract within
the accounts The movement in the onerous contract provision dunng the year of £40 Om has
been charged in the profit and loss account as a non-operating exceptional cost

Dunng the prior year Yorkshire Water incurred exceptional costs of £42 1m As a result of the
whole business secuntisation in July 2009, Yorkshire Water made a £42 1m share capital injection
into Yorkshire Water Services QOdsal Finance Holdings Ltd (Odsal Holdings) to enable the payment
of accrued Interest on exchanged bonds Yorkshire Water is required to write down the investment
in Odsal Holdings at the year end as the net assets of Odsal Holdings are lower than the amount
invested The cash will be returned to Yorkshire Water over the Iife of the exchanged bonds
These costs were Included within financing costs as they were incurred as a result of the whole
business secuntisation
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5. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL COSTS

Interest receivable and similar income:
Inter-company {oans

index linked swaps

Amortisation of fair value of index linked swaps (note 16)
Other

Interest payable and similar charges:
Bank loans and overdrafts

Finance leases

Inter-company loans

RPI uplift on index linked swaps
interest rate swap Interest

Index linked swaps coupon payable
Whole business securitisation fees
Other

Net interest payable

6. TAX (CREDIT)/CHARGE ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Current tax:
Corporation tax at 28% (2010 28%)
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Total current tax

Deferred tax:
Charge for timing differences arising and reversing in the year
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Increase in discount
Effect of change in tax rate

Total deferred tax (note 16)

Total tax on profit on ordinary activities

2011 2010
£m £m
(42.3) (13 1)
(12.4) (18 5)
(8.1) 81)
(0.7) {(10)
(63.5) M7
16.7 196
7.2 98
182.6 1218
22.8 (2 5)
9.4 127
39.3 303
- 97
16.7 73
294.7 2087
231.2 167 0
2011 2010
£m £m
14.7 523
(30.8) (0 4)
(16.1) 519
(18.2) 54
1.3 (2 0)
(16.9) 34
{4.8) (17 Q)
(37.5) -
{59.2) (13 6)
(75.3) 383

Note 16 shows further detail on the discounting of the deferred tax provision
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The difference between the total current tax charge shown and the amount calculated by applying
the standard rate of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax i1s as follows

2011 2010
£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 42.4 164 4
Tax on profit on ordinary activities at standard UK corporation tax rate
of 28% (2010 28%) 11.9 46 0
Effects of
Income not chargeable for tax purposes (0.9) (5 3)
Expenses not deductable for tax purposes 5.0 170
Capital allowances less/(in excess) of depreciatton and other timing
differences 19.5 (54)
Movement in short term timing differences (1.1) -
Utiisation of tax losses in other group companies (19.7) -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (30.8) (04
Current tax (credity/charge for the year (16.1) 519

The tax charge in future periods may be affected by the following factors

- capital investment 1s expected to remain at similar levels The company expects to be able to
continue to claim capital allowances in excess of depreciation in future years

- changes in the medium and long-term interest rates used to discount deferred tax assets and
habihties will affect the amount of deferred tax charged in the profit and loss account

The adjustrments in respect of prior years of £30 8m relates to the release of the over provision of
tax prowvisions In previous periods Upon agreement of the tax treatment of items with HM
Revenue and Customs, these provisions have now been released In addition there has been a
reduction in the amount payable to certain group companies for the receipt of group tax losses

In addition, industnal buildings allowance was phased out at the end of March 2011 The net
impact of this change 1s not expected to be matenal

The March 2011 Budget introduced a reduction n the rate of corporation tax from 28% to 26%
from 1 Apnl 2011 (The rate was previously to be reduced from 28% to 27% from 1 Apni 2011 by
the Finance (No 2) Act 2010) Further reductions in the rate of corporation tax are proposed to
reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 23% by 1 Apnl 2014

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured upon this new 26% rate

The proposed reductions of the rate of corporation tax by 1% per year to 23% by 1 April 2014 are
expected to be enacted separately each year The overall effect of the further change from 26% to
23%, If applied to the deferred tax balance at 31 March 2011, would be to reduce the deferred tax
hability by £67 1m (being £22 4m provided in 2012, £22 4m provided in 2013 and £22 3m provided
in 2014)
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7. DIVIDENDS

No final dividend for the year has been proposed The dividend in the year of £46 9m was paid in
order to fund interest and a loan repayment on a loan from Yorkshire Water to Kelda Holdco Ltd
Of the prior year dividend of £211 Om, £27 8m was paid to fund interest and loan repayments

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
Cost £m
Balance at 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011 17 9
Amortisation
Balance at 1 Apnl 2010 (© 4)
Charge for the year (0 9)
Balance at 31 March 2011 (10 3)
Net book amount as at 31 March 2011 7.6
Net book amount as at 31 March 2010 85

Goodwill arose on the transfer of the trade and net assets of The York WaterWorks Ltd on 1 Apnl
2000 and 1s being amortised over 19 years The directors do not believe this should be impaired as
it relates to assets which are still in continuing use within the business

39




Notes to the Financial Statements

9. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Land and Infrastructure Plant and Under
buldings assets equipment construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2010 1,729 3 26713 2,376 6 216 1 6,993 3
Additions 142 258 456 2247 3103
Transfers on commissioning 319 344 752 (141 5) -
Disposals - external (10 4) - (27 4) (0 4) (38 2)
Grants and contnbutions - - - (10 0) {10 0)
At 31 March 2011 1,765.0 2,7315 2,470.0 288.9 7,255.4
Depreciation
At 1 April 2010 5330 1,0134 1,166 9 - 27133
Disposals (10 3) - (27 7) (0 4) (38 4)
Depreciation for the year 336 619 126 8 04 2227
At 31 March 2011 556.3 1,075.3 1,266.0 - 2,897.6
Closing net book amount 1,208.7 1,656.2 1,204.0 288.9 4,357.8
Opening net book amount 1,196 3 1,657 9 1,209 7 2161 4,2800

At 31 March 2011 assets above held under finance leases amounted to

Cost 126 1 1000 197 6 - 4237
Depreciation (33 6) (217) {125 4) - {180 7}
Closing net book amount 92.5 78.3 72.2 - 243.0
Opening net book amount 94 7 806 821 - 257 4
Net book

Cost at Depreciation value at Net book

31 March at 31 March 31 March value at 31

2011 2011 2011 March 2010

The net book amount of land £m £m £m £m

and buildings comprised:

Freehold properties 1,586 0 (3822) 1,2038 1,195 0
Properties held on long lease 05 - 05 05
Properties held on short lease 51 {0 6) 45 08
1,591.6 (382.8) 1,208.8 1,196.3

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the
cost of fixed assets The company's accounting policy in respect of grants and contributions 1s a
departure from the Companies Act 2006 requirements and i1s adopted, as explained in the
accounting policy note on page 33, in order to show a true and farr view of the investment in
infrastructure assets As a consequence, the net book amount of fixed assets 1s £393 7m (2010
£383 7m) lower than it would have been had this treatment not been adopted

Certain categories of the company's land and buildings are held at valuation, on the basis of
existing use, valued by independent qualified valuers in March 2009 The valuations were
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undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in the UK These external valuations will be re-performed on a periodic
basis An intenm valuation 1s booked In intervening years based on directors’ valuations No
changes In values have been booked dunng the year

No deferred tax i1s provided on timing differences arsing from the revaluation of fixed assets
unless, by the balance sheet date, a binding commitment to sell the asset has been entered into
and It 1s unlikely that any gain will be rolled over

Categories of assets revalued are as follows

Valuation Historical
cost basis
£m £m
Non-specialist properties 75 24
Rural estates 439 08
Residential properties 47 01
56 1 33
Analysis of the net book value of revalued assets 1s as follows
Valuation Historical
cost basis
£m £m
31 March 2008 561 33
Disposal of revalued assets (03) -
Transfer to the profit and loss account in respect
of additional depreciation incurred on revaluation (0 3) -
31 March 2010 555 33
Disposal of revalued assets (03) -
Transfer to the profit and loss account in respect
of additional depreciation incurred on revaluation (0 3) -
31 March 2011 54.9 3.3

10. INVESTMENTS

Investments of £0 1m at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010 includes £27,119 of 8% Unsecured
Loan Stock in Water Research Centre (1989) Plc, which conducts research on behalf of the water
industry

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing group accounts under section
400 of the Companies Act 2006 Consolidated accounts have been prepared by Kelda Eurobond
Co Ltd, the largest UK group to consolidate these accounts Copies can be obtained from the
Company Secretary, Kelda Eurobond Co Ltd, Western House, Halifax Road, Bradford, BD6 252

11. STOCK
2011 2010
£m £m
Raw matenals and consumables 1.2 10
Work In progress - 01
1.2 11
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12. DEBTORS

Receivable within one year

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Prepayments and accrued income

Other debtors

Receivable after more than one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings
Other debtors

2011 2010
£m £m
77.9 802
10.6 a0 1
1.4 -
59.8 60 2
10.3 102
160.0 2407
928.8 296 7
0.1 -
928.9 2967

Amounts owed by group undertakings within one year and after more than one year includes
£288 6m (2010 £296 7m) In respect of the fair value of index linked swaps at the date of novation
from Saltarre Water Ltd to Yorkshire Water in August 2008 and £640 2m upstream loans to Kelda

Holdco Lid (2010 £nil)

13. OTHER CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade creditors

Capital creditors

Deferred grants and contributions on deprectating fixed assets
Amounts owed to group undertakings

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings

Social security and other taxes

Taxation payable

Recelpts in advance

Other creditors

Amounts failing due after more than one year:
Deferred grants and contributions on depreciating fixed assets
Other creditors

2011 2010
£m £m
46.9 431
104.4 349
2.9 30
17.0 222
741 572
1.9 20
57 243
50.3 524
30.6 350
333.8 274 1
71.0 734
63.4 66 3
134.4 1397

Amounts owed to group undertakings relate to amounts of debt raised by subsidianes and lent to

Yorkshire Water to finance its operations in addition to creditors for services provided
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14. AGGREGATE BORROWINGS AND CASH

Short term borrowings:
In one year or less or on demand

Long term borrowings:

In more than one year, but not more than two years
In more than two years, but not mare than five years
In more than five years

Cash at bank

Net amounts owed to subsidiary companies
Net debt at 31 March 2011

Short term borrowings
In one year or less or on demand

Long term borrowings

In more than one year, but not more than two years
In more than two years, but not more than five years
In more than five years

Cash at bank

Amounts owed to parent company

Short term amounts owed to subsidiary companies
Long term amounts owed to subsidiary companies
Net debt at 31 March 2010

2011
Bank loans
and Other Fminance

overdrafts loans leases Total
£m £m £m £m

45.9 17.4 63.3
410 - 201 611
917 - 90 3 1820

127 1 400 237 3 404 4
259.8 40.0 347.7 647.5
(45.4)

2,290.9

2,956.3

2010
Bank loans
and Other Finance

overdrafts loans leases Total
£m £m £m £m

27 1 - 125 396

430 - 132 56 2
1036 - 728 176 4

156 1 17 2 282 5 4558
3027 172 3685 688 4
(58 8)

807

169 7

2,154 5

30741

Net amounts owed to subsidiary companies includes £640 2m receivable (2010 £nil) in relation to
loans to parent companies This i1s disclosed within debtors receivable after more than one year

Borrowings repayable in instalments after more than five years include £237 3m (2010 £282 5m)
in respect of finance leases which have expiry dates ranging from 2018 to 2043 and carry interest
rates based on 12 month LIBOR (London Interbank Offered Rate) and 6 month LIBOR The
finance lease creditors are secured on the underlying assets

At 31 March 2011 Yorkshire Water had undrawn committed syndicated bank facilities totalling

£510 0m These facilities expire iIn November 2012
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15. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

Interest rate swaps

Yorkshire Water holds £125 Om nominal value (2010 £290 Om) of floating to fixed rate interest
swaps These swaps had an out of the money mark to market value of £15 2m at 31 March 2011
(2010 £250m)

Index linked swaps

In February 2008, Saltaire Water Ltd, at that ime an intermediate parent company, entered into
certain index linked (‘IL’) swaps, with a nominal value of £1,288 9m These swaps were novated to
Yorkshire Water in August 2008 at which time the swaps were out of the money by £308 9m This
value was reflected in Yorkshire Water's balance sheet as an intercompany debtor, receivable from
Saltarre, with a provision for the same amount The prowvision 1s amortised through the Yorkshire
Water profit and loss account over a 38 year period (being the remaining weighted average life of
the swaps) and for 2010/11 the amortisation charge was £8 tm

The outstanding IL swaps have matunty dates ranging from 2026 to 2063, some with break dates
exercisable by the swap counterparties prior to matunty Prowvisions within the bank covenants
require that break dates are arranged such that swaps with a nominal value equal to no more than
3 5% of RCV can break n any two year period and no more than 7% of RCV in any five year
penod, thus reducing the nisk of swap matunty concentration

There are three cashflows associated with the swaps

e Six monthly receivable elements linked to LIBOR,

« Six monthly payable elements linked to RPI, and

* An RPI-linked final bullet that 1s payable on matunty of the instruments

Interest payments and receipts are accrued in the profit and loss account The RPI bullet
accumulated at the balance sheet date I1s discounted using the 30 year gilt rate at the relevant
date, accrued in the profit and loss account and recognised within long term borrowings

With six month LIBOR and applicable discount rates at historically low levels in the short term,
these swaps gave nse to an out of the money mark to market value of £867 2m (2010 £829 8m) at
the year end date, giving a total mark to market for all swaps of £882 4m (2010 £854 8m)

Of this £40 Om (2010 £17 2m) has been recognised within long term borrowings, this represents
the discounted value of the RPI bultet accrued to 31 March 2011

A further £335 5m 1s included within provisions for habilities and charges (2010 £295 5m) (note 16}
which represents an onerous contract provision in relation to the unhedged portion of the interest
rate and index linked swaps

When calculating the size of the prowvision required at 31 March 2011, the directors have

considered that

e At the year end, the swaps are effectively hedging 56 7% of the floating rate debt held by
Yorkshire Water and the further floating rate debt to be taken out by Yorkshire Water, and

e The swaps are held for the long term benefit of the business and provide a hedge aganst
existing and future floating rate debt as Yorkshire Water gears up in the foreseeable future
under the new securitised structure

All of the swaps outlined above were valued using information provided by external consultants,
using a discounted cash flow model and quoted market information This information 1s reviewed
by the group treasury department and discussed with relevant directors to ensure it 1s appropriate
for use
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16. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES

Index hinked swaps

onerous contract  Deferred Self
provision tax (nsurance Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apni 2009 3036 2349 03 5388
(Credited)/charged to the profit and - (13 6) 03 (13 3)
loss account in the year
Utihsed in the year (8 1) - (0 3) (8 4)
At 31 March 2010 2055 2213 03 517 1
Charged/(credited) to the profit and 400 (59 3) 01 (19 2)
loss account and utiised in the year
At 31 March 2011 335.5 162.0 0.4 497.9
Deferred tax
2011 2010
£m fm
At 1 Apnl 221.3 2349
Deferred tax credited to the profit and loss account (60.5) {116}
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 1.3 (2 0)
At 31 March 162.1 2213
Deferred tax 1s provided as follows
At 31 March At 31 March
2011 2010
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 492.5 552 4
Short term timing differences 3.1 (2 3)
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax 495.6 550 1
Discount (333.5) {328 8)
Discounted provision for deferred tax 162.1 2213

The corporation tax rate of 26% (2010 28%) has been used to calculate the amount of deferred
tax The effect of industrial buldings allowances has been excluded from the deferred tax
calculations on account of the abolition of balancing allowances and charges announced in the
Chancellor's Budget of March 2007 and introduced into legislation by Finance Act 2007 Other than
this, provision has been made for all deferred tax assets and liabilities in respect of accelerated
capital allowances and other matenal tming differences

In accordance with FRS 19 in order to reflect the time value of money, the company discounts its
deferred tax liabiity The period of discounting runs until the underlyng timing differences
completely reverse In carrying out this calculation, all future movements in the accelerated capital
allowances and depreciation charges are scheduled out on a yearly basis, taking account of future
depreciation rates No account 1s taken of timing differences that might anse on fixed assets
expected to be purchased in the future The discount rate used Is the post-tax yield on Government
gits with equivalent matunty dates and currency to those of the deferred tax balance, at the
balance sheet date
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17. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted and
Authorised fully paid
£ £
10,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each at 31 March 2010
and 31 March 2011 10,000,000 10,000,000
18. MOVEMENT IN TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'’S FUNDS
Profit Share- Share Revaluation Total
and loss based capital reserve shareholder's
reserve payment funds
reserve
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2009 8408 31 100 528 906 7
Profit for the year 126 1 - - - 126 1
Dividends (211 0) - - - (211 0)
Revaluation reserve released during the
year 06 - - (086) -
Share-based payments amount due to
parent - 03 - - 03
At 31 March 2010 756 5 34 100 522 822 1
Profit for the year 1177 - - - M77
Dividends (46 9) - - - (46 9)
Revaluation reserve released during the
year 06 - - (0 6) -
Share-based payments amount due to
parent - 01 - - 01
At 31 March 2011 827.9 35 10.0 51.6 893.0
19. CAPITAL AND OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
2011 2010
£m £m
Capital and infrastructure renewals expenditure
commitments for contracts placed at 31 March were 343.8 105 5

The long term investment programme for the company, which identified substantial future capital
expenditure commitments In the period 2010 to 2015, was agreed as part of the Periodic Review
process which was finalised in December 2009

At the year end the company was committed to making the following annual payments dunng the
next financial year under non-cancellable operating leases expiring as set out below
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Land and Land and

buildings Other buildings Other

2011 2011 2010 2010

Leases which expire: £m £m £m £m
Within one year - 0.7 - 01
Between two and five years 0.3 1.5 04 24

After five years - 0.0 04 -
0.3 2.2 08 25

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with other group companies
and the bank balances of each subsidiary can be offset against each other The company had
guaranteed the following bonds with Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd, Yorkshire Water
Services Bradford Finance Ltd and Yorkshire Water Services Odsal Finance Ltd at 31 March 2011

Nominal
£m
Fixed rate
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 68
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 74
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 02
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 2000
Yorkshire Water Services Qdsal Finance Ltd 299
Yorkshire Water Services Odsal Finance Ltd 180 8
Yorkshire Water Services Odsal Finance Ltd 1355
Yorkshire Water Services Odsal Finance Ltd 2550
Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Ltd 2750
Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Ltd 2000
Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Ltd 1000
Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Ltd 450 0
Total fixed
Index linked
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 01
Yorkshire Water Services Odsal Finance Ltd 127 8
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltid 650
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 1250
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 850
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 1250
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd 1000
Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Ltd 1750
Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Ltd 850

Total index linked
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Coupon Maturity

%

5375%
5 500%
6 625%
5 500%
6 588%
6 588%
6 454%
6 601%
6 000%
6 375%
6 375%
6 000%

3 048%
3 307%
1823%
1462%
1758%
1460%
1709%
2718%
2718%

2023
2027
2031
2037
2023
2023
2027
2031
2018
2039
2038
2025

2033
2033
2050
2051
2054
2056
2058
2039
2039

Liability
at 31 March 2011

£m

68

74

02
2000
299
180 8
1355
2550
2750
2000
1000
450 0

1,840.6

02
1323
727
142 4
952
1434
1119
1893
920

979.4
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21. PENSION COMMITMENTS

The company sponsors a UK pension scheme, the Kelda Group Pension Plan (KGPP) The KGPP
has a number of benefit categories providing benefits on a defined benefit basis and one category
providing benefits on a defined contnbution basis

Contnbutions during the year ended 31 March 2011 were paid by members at 3%, 4%, 4 5%, 5%
or 6% of pensionable pay (depending on benefit category) The company contnibuted at 22 2%
(2010 22 2%) of members’ pensionable pay during the accounting year in respect of the majority
of members

The most recent finalised actuanal valuaticn of the KGPP was carned out as at 31 March 2010
when the market value of assets was £838 2m The company participates in the group multi-
employer scheme, such that the company’'s pension scheme’s assets and liabilities are included
with those of other subsidiary companies of Kelda Holdings Ltd The company i1s unable to identify
its share of the underlying assets and labilities of the KGPP as, with the exception of Kelda Water
Services (Wales) Ltd, the scheme's members are not unitised by company The company therefore
accounts for pension costs on a contnbution basis

The company’s total pension charge for the year was £25 9m (2010 £16 6m) At 31 March 2011,
the company had outstanding contributions of £1 4m (2010 £3 3m) An accrual for these unfunded
benefits have been included in the company’s accounts

A summary of scheme position as disclosed in the Kelda Holdco Ltd accounts as at 31 March 2011
Is as follows

2011 2010
Market Expected Market  Expected
value long term value long term
rate of rate of
return return
£m % £m %
Fair value of scheme assets
Equities 541.7 7.2 5231 73
Bonds 251.0 4.9 246 3 51
Property 76.9 7.2 681 73
Other 53 4.4 45 46
Total value of assets 874.9 8420
Present value of scheme liabilities {914.9) (909 5)
Net pension liability (40.0) (67 5)

Pension contributions are determined with the advice of independent qualified actuares, Mercer
Human Resource Consulting, on the basis of annual valuations using the projected unit credit
method and use the following assumptions

2011 2010
Inflation 3.4% 35%
Rate of increase in salanes 4.4% 4 5%
Rate of increase to pensions in payment and deferred pensions 3.4% 35%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.5% 56%
Life expectancy of male pensioner aged 60 (in years) 26.4 249
Projected hife expectancy at age 60 for male aged 40 (in years) 28.4 260
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22. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The company's immediate parent company I1s Yorkshire Water Services Holdings Ltd The
company's ultimate parent company and controling party 1s Kelda Holdings Ltd, a company
registered in Jersey

Kelda Holdco Ltd, a company registered in England and Wales, 1s the parent undertaking of the
smallest group to consolidate these accounts Kelda Eurobond Co Ltd, a company registered in
England and Wales, 1s the largest UK group to consolidate these accounts

Copies of the group accounts may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Kelda Eurobond Co
Ltd, Western House, Halifax Road, Bradford BD6 252

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The company 1s exempt under the terms of FRS 8 “Related party transactions” from disclosing
related party transactions with entities that are part of the Kelda Holdings Ltd group

During the year the company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with
other related parties Transactions entered into, and trading balances outstanding at 31 March, are
as follows

Sales to related Amounts owed

party from related party

Related party 2011 2010 2011 2010
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Kelda Water Services (Defence} Ltd - 312 - -
Dalnada Water Services Ltd - 3 - -
Aberdeen Environmental Services Ltd - 6 - 2
- 321 - 2

As at 31 March 2009 Kelda Water Services Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kelda Group Ltd,
had a 50% interest in Kelda Water Services (Defence) Ltd (formerly Brey Services Ltd) and a 50%
interest in Dalnada Water Services Ltd (DWS) Dunng 2009/10 the interest n DWS and Brey both
increased to 100% as at 31 March 2010 On 26 Apnl 2010 the remaining 50% of AES was
purchased by Kelda Non Reg Holdco Ltd and 1s now part of the Kelda Holdings Ltd group

24. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

For statutory purposes, the directors consider there to be only one business segment, being the
provision of water and sewerage services

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Share options

In prior years the ultimate parent company, Kelda Group Ltd (formerly pic}, operated a savings
related share option scheme under which options were granted to employees and provided for at
an exercise price equal to the daily average market prnice on the date of grant less 20% The
options vested If the employee remained in service for the full duration of the options scheme
(either 3 or 5 years)
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In 2008, the scheme was closed following the acquisition of Kelda Group plc by Saltarre Water Ltd
Certain schemes have been allowed to continue until the planned maturity of three or five years
from grant date with members choosing whether to continue to contribute

2011 2010

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

Options price Options price

£ £

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 259,192 6.20 500,372 6 86
Lapsed durnng the year (11,057} 6.62 (972) 704
Exercised duning the year (148,974) 5.72 (240,208) 558
Outstanding at the end of the year 99,161 6.99 259,192 620
Of which exercisable at the end of the year 28,347 5.88 78,215 538

The weighted average share pnice at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the
year was £10 90 (2010 £10 90)

The options outstanding at 31 March 2011 had a weighted average exercise price of £6 99 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1 0 years

The fair value of the share options granted 1s estimated as at the date of grant using the Black

Scholes statistical model No shares were granted since 2007 The inputs to the Black Scholes
model for 2007 were as follows

2007
Share price at date of grant 926p
Exercise price 741p
Expected volatility 25%
Expected life 3 and 5 years
Risk free rate 508%
Expected dividends 31p

Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the group's share price
over the last 6 years of its trade
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the directors have prepared the financial statements n accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law) Under company faw the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that peniod In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make Jjudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s nappropriate
to presume that the company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularnties

The maintenance and integnty of the Company’s web site 15 the responsibility of the directors and the maintenance and integnty
of the Regulator’s web site 1s the responsibility of the Regulator, the work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to
the Regulatory Accounts since they were 1uhally presented on the web sites

Legslation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements and Regulatory
Accounts may differ from legislahon in other junsdiction
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Independent Auditors’ Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF YORKSHIRE WATER
SERVICES LTD

We have audited the financial statements of Yorkshire Water Services Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2011 which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, Statement of Total
Recognised Gains and Losses, the Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilites Statement set out on page 51 the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's
members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
and for no other purpose We do not, In giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from materal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This Includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’s
circumstances and have been consistently appled and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-
financial information 1n the Annual Report to identfy matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent materal misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements
* give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affars as at 31 March 2011
and of its profit for the year then ended,
e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice, and
« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you If, In our opinion
« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or
« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit.

i

Richard Bunter (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf ot PricewaternouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Leeds

7 July 2011
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Explanatory note
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Historical Cost Profit & Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Tumover

Operating costs

Histoncal cost depreciation
Operating income

Operating profit

QOther income
Net interest

Profit on ordinary activities

before taxation
Taxation - current
Taxation - deferrred

Profit on ordinary activities
after taxation

Dividends
Retained profit/{loss) for
the year

2011
Non-
Appointed appointed Total
Em £m £m
859.7 7.7 8674
(394 7) (6.5) (401.2)
(157.6) - {157.6)
2.6 - 286
310.0 1.2 312
24 - 24
{271 2) - (271 2)
41.2 1.2 424
164 (04) 16.0
59.2 - 59.2
116.8 08 1176
(46.9) - (46.9)
69.9 0.8 70.7

2010
Non-
Appointed apponted  Total
£m £m £m
8592 102 8694
(408 0) (83) (416 3)
(141 8) - (141 8)
13 - 13
307 18 326
188 - 18 8
(167 0) - (167 0)
162 5 19 1644
(514) 05 (319
136 - 136
1247 14 1261
(211 0) - (211 0)
(86 3) 14 (849)

The accounting policies set out on page 30 of the statutory financial statements of Yorkshire
Water Services Ltd (Yorkshire Water) apply to the histoncal cost regulatory accounting
information, with the exception of the accounting for infrastructure assets and the investment In
The York Waterworks Ltd (Note 1 on page 60)

There 1s no matenal difference between the profit before tax and the profit for the year stated
above and their historical cost equivalents There 1s no material difference between the histoncal
cost depreciation charge and the actual depreciation charge for the year as a result of the re-
valuation of certain tangible fixed assets
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! As at 31 March 2011

Historical Cost Balance Sheet

201 2010
Non- Non-
Appomnted appointed Total Appointed appointed Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4,372.0 40 4,376.0 42984 43 43027
Investment - loan to a group company 928 8 - 928.8 2079 - 207 8
Investment - other 7.6 - 76 86 - 86
5,308.4 40 53124 45149 43 45192
Current assets
Stocks 12 - 1.2 11 - 11
Debtors 159.0 11 160.1 2380 28 2408
Cash 40.4 - 40.4 588 - 588
Short term deposits 5.0 - 5.0 81 - 81
205.6 11 206.7 3060 28 3088
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Infrastructure renewals accrual (18.2) - (18 2) (227) - (227)
Creditors {324.9) {0.2) (3251) {226 0) {(04) (2264)
Borrowings (68 2) 4.9 (63.3) (212 Q) 27 {209 3)
Corporation tax payable {5.4) {0.4) {5 8) (44 2) {06) (44 8)
(416.7) 4.3 (412 4) (504 9) 17 {503 2)
Net current liabiliies {211.1) 54 (205 7) (198 9) 45 {194 4)
Total assets less current habihties 5,097.3 94 5,106.7 43160 88 43248
Creditors' amounts falling due after more than 1 year
Borrowings {3,578.6) - (3,57886) (2,8429) - (2,8429)
Cther creditors {63 3) - (63.3) (66 3) - (66 3)
{3,641.9) - {3,641.9) (2,9092) - (2,809 2)
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax provision (162 0) - (162.0) (221 3) - {221 3)
Deferred income - grants and contnbutions {70.5) {3.5) (74.0) (72 6) (38) (76 4)
Other provisions (335 8) - (335.8) (295 8) - (2958)
887.1 5.9 893.0 817 1 50 8221
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10.0 - 10.0 100 - 100
Profit and loss resetve 822.0 59 827.9 7515 50 756 5
Other reserves - share based payments 3.5 - 3.5 34 - 34
Other reserves - revaluation surplus 51.6 - 51.6 522 - 522
887 1 59 893.0 817 1 50 8221

The regulatory financial statements on pages 55 to 79 were approved by the board of directors on 7 July

2011 and signed on their behalf by

Richard Flint
Chief Executive Officer
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Current Cost Profit and Loss Account

for the Appointed Business
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Turnover

Current cost operating costs
Operating expense

Working capital adjustment
Current cost operating profit
Other income

Net interest

Financing adjustment

Current cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation - current tax
- deferred tax

Current cost profit on ordinary activities after taxation
Dvdends

Current cost profit/{loss)

57

Note

(S e B ]

2011 2010
£m £m
859.7 859 2
(602.1) (610 2)
(7.7} (02)
(4.9} 12
245.0 2500
2.4 188
(271.2) (167 0)
175.2 1317
151.4 2335
16.4 514)
59.2 136
227.0 1957
(46.9) (211 0)
180.1 (15 3)




Current Cost Balance Sheet
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Third party contributions since 1989/90

Other operating assets and liabilities
Working capital

Cash

Short term deposits

Infrastructure renewals accrual

Net operating assets

Non operating assets and liabilities
Borrowings

Non-trade debtors

Non-trade creditors due within one year
Investment - loan to Group company
Investment - other

Corporation tax payable

Total non operating assets and liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one
year

Borrowings

Other creditors

Total creditors falling due after more than one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred tax provision
Other provisions

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Profit and loss reserve
Other reserves
Current cost reserve
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Note 2011
£m

8 36,300.6
(454.9)

9 (68.9)
40.4

5.0

(18.2)

35,804 0

2010
£m

34,437 9
(427 2)

96 8

58 8
81

(227)

(68.2)
19.5

{115.3)
928.8
7.6

(5.4)
767.0

(3,578.6)
(63.3)

34,1517

212 1)
117
(95 4)

207 9

85
(44 2)

(123 6)

(2,842 9)
(66 3)

(3,641 9)

(162.0)
(335.8)

(497 8)

32,431.3

10.0

425.2

3.5

10 31,992.6

32,431.3

(2,909 2}

(221 3)
(295 8)

(517 1)

30,6018

100
2450
34
30,343 4

30,601 8




Current Cost Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
Non- Non-
Note Appointed appointed Total Appointed appointed  Total
£m Em £m £m Em £m

Net cash flow from 11 6285 0.8 6293 4847 08 4855
operating activities
Returns on investments
and servicing of finance
Interest received 51.6 - 516 614 - 814
Interest paid {182.2) - {182.2) (166 1) - (166 1)
Interest in finance lease
rentals (20.4) - (20.4) (17 0) - {(170)
Net cash flow from returns
on investments (151.0) - {(151.0) {121 7) - (121 7)
and servicing of finance
Taxation
Tax paid {11.1) (0.6) (117) (46 7) (06) (47 3)
Capital expenditure and
financing of investment
Investment in subsidiary - - - (42 2) - (422)
Gross cost of purchase of fixed {174.9) (0.2} (175.1) (244 3) (02) (244 5)
assefs
Receipt of grants and contnbutions 7.6 - 7.6 104 - 104
Infrastructure renewals (66.1) - {66.1) (439) - (439)
Disposal of fixed assets 1.3 - 13 12 - 12
Net cash outflow from
investing activities (232.1) (0.2) (232.3) (318 8) {02) (3190)
Equity dividends paid (46.9) - (46.9) (211 0) - (211 0)
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
before financing 187 4 - 1874 (213 5) - (2135)
Financing
Capital element in finance {15.7) - (158.7) (14 5) - (145)
lease rentals
New bank loans 721.4 - 7214 802 4 - 8024
Repayment of bank lcans {908.7) - (908.7) (533 9) - (633 9)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow
from financing (203.0) - {203.0) 254 0 - 25440
{Decrease)fincrease in
cash (15.6) - (15.6) 405 - 405
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Notes to the Regulatory Accounting Information

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CURRENT COSTINFORMATION

The current cost inforration has been prepared for the Appointed Business of
Yorkshire Water Services Ltd (Yorkshire Water) in accordance with guidance i1ssued
by Ofwat for modified real terms financial statements suitable for regulation In the
water Industry Profitability 1s measured on the basis of real financial capital
maintenance in the context of assets which are valued at ther modern equivalent
asset value to the business

The accounting policies used are the same as those adopted in the statutory
accounts, except as set out below

Infrastructure assets

As noted on page 55, FRS 12 has not been implemented in the regulatory accounts
and the difference between planned and actual expenditure on Infrastructure
renewals 1s shown separately in the current cost balance sheet

Tangible fixed assets

Assets in operational use are valued at the replacement cost of theirr operating
capability To the extent that the regulatory regime does not allow such assets to earn
a return high enough to justify that value, this represents a modification of the value to
the business pnnciple Also, no provision 1s made for the possible funding of future
replacements of assets by contnibutions from third parties and, to the extent that
some of those assets would on replacement be so funded, replacement cost again
differs from value to the business Redundant assets are valued at their recoverable
amount

The modern equivalent asset values (MEA) ansing from the last Periodic Review
(PR09) are incorporated in the 2010/11 Regulatory Accounting Information

The revaluation of historical cost fixed assets does not affect the current cost
accounting infoarmation

- Land and buildings
Non-specialised operational properties are valued on the basis of open market
value for existing use and have been expressed in real terms by indexing
using the Retail Price Index (RPI)

Specialised operational properties are valued at the lower of depreciated
replacement cost and recoverable amount, restated annually between periodic
Asset Management Plan (AMP) reviews by adjusting for inflation as measured
by changes in the RPlI The unamortised portion of third party contributions
received 1s deducted in arriving at net operating assets (as described below)

- Infrastructure assets
Mains, sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservorrs, dams,
sludge pipelines and sea outfalls are valued at replacement cost, determined
principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP

Values now reflect the AMP carried out at the last Penodic Review A process
of continuing refinement of asset records I1s expected to produce adjustments
to existing values when periodic reviews of the AMP take place In the
intervening years, values are restated to take account of changes in the
general level of inflation, as measured by changes in the RPI over the year
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- Other fixed assets
All other fixed assets are valued pencdically at depreciated replacement cost
Between periodic AMP reviews, values are restated for inflation as measured
by changes in the RPI

- Surplus land
Surplus land I1s valued at recoverable amount, taking into account that part of
any proceeds to be passed on to customers under Condition B of the
Instrument of Appointment

Grants and other third party contributions

Grants, infrastructure charges and other third party contributions received since 31
March 1990 are carried forward to the extent that any balance has not been credited
to revenue The balance carried forward 1s restated for the change in the RPI for the
year and treated as deferred income

Real financial capital maintenance adjustments
These adjustments are made to histonical cost profit in order to arnve at profit after
the maintenance of financial capital in real terms

- Working capital adjustment
This 1s calculated by applying the change in the RPI over the year to the
opening total of trade debtors and stock less trade creditors and the provision
for habihties and charges

- Financing adjustment
This I1s calculated by applying the change in the RPI over the year to the
opening balance of net finance, which comprises all monetary assets and
llabilities in the balance sheet apart from those included in working capital

Investment in York WaterWorks

The intangible assets accounting policy on page 39 and note 8 of the statutory
financial statements of Yorkshire Water outline the treatment of the transfer of the
trade and net assets of The York WaterWorks Ltd (YWW) to Yorkshire Water in 2000

Revenue recognition
There 1s no difference between the turnover recognised in the statutory and
regulatory accounts or in the policy for revenue recognition

No turnover 1s recognised for unoccupied properties and no bills are raised If a bill
has been issued, and the company subsequently become aware that the property 1s
unoccupied, the bill and relevant turnover 1s cancelled Generally a property Is
classed as void If it 1s unoccupied and unfurmshed

Turnover 1s only recognised when the occupier’s name 1s known This policy applies

to both existing and new properties All biling 1s then subsequently classed as
turnover

61




Notes to the Regulatory Accounting Information

APPOINTED AND NON-APPOINTED BUSINESS

The historical cost accounting information shows separate figures for Appointed and
Non-Appointed Business

The Appointed Business 1s defined to be the regulated activities of the Appointee, 1 e
those necessary to fulfil the functions and duties of a water and sewerage undertaker
The Non-Appointed Business encompasses those activites for which Yorkshire
Water 1s not a monopoly supplier or the activity involves the optional use of an asset
owned by the Appointed Business

DISCLOSURE OF TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATES

Allocation of costs

All direct costs are allocated immedhately to the activity to which they relate Indirect
costs and overheads are appeortioned on an appropriate basis to reflect the incidence
of such costs Indirect costs include administrative expenses and the provision of
common services

Direct costs attributable to the prowvision of services other than the Appointed
Business are separately allocated and identified as 'Non-Appointed' Indirect costs,
relating to non-appointed activities, are recovered as a fixed percentage of direct
costs based upon the analysis of operating costs

Borrowings or sums lent

Kelda Holdco Ltd

A long term loan was advanced by Yorkshire Water to Kelda Holdco, with Ofwat’s
approval, during 2008/09 This 1s repayable over 38 years Balances at 1 Apnl 2010
and 31 March 2011 were £296 7m and £288 6m respectively Interest i1s payable at
current market rates

Yorkshire Water made further advances to Kelda Holdco Limited during the year
ended 31 March 2011, which included repaying the short-term loan from Kelda
Holdco to Yorkshire Water as follows
e £501 5m April 2010
£50 5m June 2010
£77 5m September 2010
£46 3m December 2010
£45 1m March 2011

Balances at 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 were £80 7m payable and £640 2m
recewvable respectively Interest s payable at current market rates

Yorkshire Water Services Finance Limited

On 17 Apnl 2000, £150m was lent at a fixed rate of 6 625% repayable in 2031, and on
16 November 2001 a further £90m was lent at 6 625% repayable in 2031 On 3 July
2008 Yorkshire Water Services Finance Ltd (YWSF), a subsidiary of the company,
became principal debtor under the bonds which are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by Yorkshire Water As a result, the loans from Kelda Group Ltd were
transferred to YWSF

On 24 July 2008, Yorkshire Water implemented a whole business securitisation (WBS)
Post the implementation of the WBS, Yorkshire Water Services Finance Limited will
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remain the i1ssuer in respect of the existing bonds on-lent to Yorkshire Water, but will

not 1ssue further bonds in the future

The table below sets out the amounts outstanding on the bonds remaining within

YWSF
Issue Date Nominal | Coupon | Maturity | Liability @
£m 31/03/2011
£m
Fixed Rate
07/04/2000 2400 6 625% 2031 06
21/02/2003 2000 5 375% 2023 37
29/05/2007 2000 5 500% 2037 194 8
29/05/2007 150 0 5 500% 2027 62
Index Linked
21/02/2003 1000 3 048% 2033 25
27/11/2006 1250 1 462% 2051 143 3
27/11/2006 1250 1 460% 2056 143 2
01/06/2007 850 175756% 2054 947
11/06/2007 1000 1 7085% 2058 1113
11/06/2007 650 18225% 2050 723
Total loan with YWSFL 772.6

Yorkshire Water Services Odsal Finance Limited (‘"YWSOFL')
As stated above, during the year ended 31 March 2010 Yorkshire Water implemented
a WBS Part of this process involved certain bonds initially 1ssued by YWSFL being
exchanged for new bonds 1ssued by a fellow subsidiary YWSOFL These exchange
bonds (shown in the table below) were 1ssued on different terms to the existing

bonds
Exchange Bonds Original | Original Loan New
par value ;| coupon notes coupon
YWSFL issued
£m YWSOFL
£m
Fixed rate notes due Apnl 2010 - 290 | 6875% 299 6 588%
exchanged to fixed rate notes due
February 2023
Fixed rate notes due February 2023 - 1932 | 5375% 180 8 6 588%
exchanged to fixed rate notes due
February 2023
Fixed rate notes due May 2027 - 1426 | 5500% 1355 6 454%
exchanged to fixed rate notes due May
2027
Fixed rate notes due Apnl 2031 - 2400 | 6625% 2550 6 601%
exchanged to fixed rate notes due April
2031
Fixed rate index-linked notes due July 1225 | 3048% 1323 3307%
2033 -
exchanged to fixed rate index-linked
notes due July 2033
Total 727.3 733.5
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In order to fund the change Iin coupon payable and differences in par values post the

bond exchange, Yorkshire Water entered into a sernies of loans with YWSOFL

. Deep discounting loans structured such that theirr redemption value will be
discharged by the difference between the par value paid by YWSFL in respect
of the old bonds and the par value paid by the YWSOFL in respect of the new
bonds, and

. Amortising loans structured such that the regular payments of principal and
interest equate to the difference between the interest received from YWSFL
on the old bonds and the amount payable by the YWSOFL on the new bonds

The balances outstanding as at 31 March 2011, regarding these deep discounting
and amortising loans, are shown in the table below

£m
2010 to 2023 Exchange Bonds 302
2023 to 2023 Exchange Bonds 65
2027 to 2027 Exchange Bonds 64
2031 to 2031 Exchange Bonds 154
2033 to 2033 Exchange Bonds 106
Total 69.1

In addition to this balance there 1s a short term loan from YWSOQFL of £70m which 1s
due to be repaid in 2011/12

Yorkshire Water Services Bradford Finance Limited ("'YWSBFL’)

During April 2010 YWSBFL successfully raised £635m of new debt, including £450m
of class B debt, this was a combination of fixed rate and indexed linked debt as
shown by the table below The proceeds (net of costs and expenses where
applicable) were on-lent by YWSBFL to Yorkshire Water The amounts outstanding
as at 31 March 2011 are shown in the table below

Issue Date Nominal Coupon Maturity Liability @
£m 31103/2011
£m
Fixed Rate
24/07/2009 2750 6 000% 2019 2726
24/07/2009 2000 6 375% 2039 197 8
23/04/2010 1000 6 375% 2039 1090
23/04/2010 450 0 6 000% 2025 446 1
Index Linked
24/07/2009 1750 2718% 2039 189 3
23/04/2010 850 2718% 2039 105 4
Total Loan with 1,320.2
YWSBFL

No other matenal sums were lent to or borrowed from other associated companies

Dividends paid to associated undertakings

Amounts paid to the parent company and the underlying dividend policy, are
disclosed in the Directors’ Report on page 20 of the statutory financial statements of
Yorkshire Water

Guarantees/securities
Until August 2008, the bankers for the Kelda Group Ltd and subsidiaries current
accounts provided pooling arrangements for ali accounts whereby debit and credit
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balances were pooled with interest charged on the net group balance Arrangements
changed on 11 August 2008 and now Yorkshire Water has pooling arrangements only
with YWSF and Kelda Group Ltd Debit and credit balances are pooled with interest
charged on the net group balance

This facility 1s subject to provision of cross guarantees by each company within each
pooling arrangement, guaranteeing each of the other companies’ current account
habilittes with the bank This 1s provided that the aggregate of the cleared debit
balances, less the aggregate of the cleared credit balances, 1 e the net amount must
not exceed £10m In addition, the aggregate of the cleared debit balances on the
group accounts must not exceed £15m

Transfer of assets and liabilities
Dunng the course of the year land and bulldings were sold to group companies at
market value Total sale proceeds were £1 3m (2010 £0 8m)

Supply of service

Detaills of services supplied to the Appointee by associates during the year are
disclosed below where these exceed a matenaity level of £1m (in ine with RAG & 04
requirements) No services of a matenal value were provided by the Appointee to
associates

Turnover
of
Service Associate Company Associate | Terms of Supply | Value
£m £m
Corporate charges |Kelda Group Ltd 58 |Cost allocation 35
Customer Services |Loop Customer Management 22 1 |Cost allocation 206

The Directors declare that, to the best of their knowledge, all appropnate transactions
with associated companies have been disclosed

LINK BETWEEN DIRECTORS’ PAY AND STANDARDS OF
PERFORMANCE

The remuneration policy of the company, which 1s set within the context of the group’s
remuneration policy, 1s to enable directors to receive remuneration which Is
competitive n the market and which encourages and enables upper quartile
performance, taking into account individual performance, responsibiiies and
experience Accordingly, the remuneration of the directors of the company Is
structured into three elements base salary, annual incentive and long term incentive
plan (LTIP)

Salary
The base salary 15 a fixed figure and does not vary In relation to business or individual
performance

Annual incentive plan

Under the annual incentive plan, each director has the opportunity to earn an annual
incentive award based on a percentage of therr salary Awards are entirely
performance related as descnbed below
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Early in the 2008/09 financial year, the company mplemented a new annual incentive
plan based on company performance and personal contnbution Under this plan the
annual incentive award 1s calculated as a percentage of basic salary as at 31 March

as follows

*  50% of the total maximum annual bonus payable was dependent upon delivery of
agreed personal / individual objectives set at the start of the financial year

s 50% of the total maximum annual bonus payable was dependent upon delivery of
agreed corporate objectives which supported the company’s strategic objectives
The same corporate objectives were shared by all directors These are set out In
the table overleaf with the percentage payable

In 2010/11 the scheme was reviewed and the percentage of the corporate bonus
attributed to financial measures was increased compared to the previous year

Strategic Measure % of corporate
Theme bonus
Value Financial performance 16 (20% max)
Service Service Incentive Mechanism 5 (7 5% max)
Water quality (mean zonal comphance) and WWTW

Compliance compliance with numeric sanitary consent 2 5 (7 5% max)
Asset Serviceability 2 5 (5% max)
Management
People Employee motivation 4 5 (5% max)
Health & Safety performance 4 5 (5% max)
Safety

Using these principles the awards for 2010/11 were determined by the group
remuneration committee (the Committee) and taking account of performance against
these measures and personal/individual objectives, total awards were made by the
Commuttee in accordance with the table below

Max. Bonus for Bonus for

Bonus 2010/11 2010/11

% % £

Graham Dixon 70 58 88,131
Alan Harnson 70 57 114,000
Mark Penny 70 33 42,900

These payments were approved by the Committee on 30 March 2011 and were paid
in June 2011

Kevin Whiteman, Richard Flint and Liz Barber were executive directors of Kelda
Holdco Ltd during 2010/11 and therr emoluments are shown in the accounts of that

company
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Long term incentive plan (LTIP)

The first conditional award under a revised Kelda Group LTIP, which included a link to
the company's performance against Ofwat comparative efficiency measures, was
made on 27 September 2007 Vesting of shares awarded under this Plan was
tnggered by the acquisition of Kelda Group plc (now Ltd) by Saltaire Water Ltd in
February 2008 and the Plan was then closed Detalls of the vesting of these shares
were given Iin the regulatory accounts for 2007/08

Following the acquisition, the Committee conducted a review of the group’s executive
incentive arrangements for executive directors A revised cash LTIP was developed
and established dunng the year under which the first conditional awards were granted
in November 2008

The Plan provides for a cash award based on a percentage of salary The awards as
onginally granted in November 2008 were subject to two performance conditions
which were to be measured over a three year penod

70% of the award 1s subject to the valuation of the investment made by the investors
in Kelda at the end of the relevant three year performance period as determined by
an independent valuer

The remaining 30% of the award was based on the company's Operating Efficiency
and Capital Maintenance Efficiency performance relative to the other nine water and
sewerage companies based on Ofwat published data Ofwat's report on 'Water and
Sewerage Service Unit Costs and Relative Efficiency’ (the Ofwat Report) was to be
used to produce an average ranking for the company for the financial year for the four
operating and capitai efficiency measures

The Ofwat Report used to contain Ofwat's assessment of each water company's
operating and capital maintenance efficiency for water and, in respect of the water
and sewerage companies, the same efficiency measures in respect of sewerage
These assessments are based primarily on Ofwat’s econometric models and unit cost
comparisons

Based on these assessments, the Ofwat Report used to contain a ranking amongst
the companies based on their relative performance for each of the four measures
(Operating Efficiency - Water, Capital Maintenance Efficiency - Water, Operating
Efficiency - Sewerage, Capital Maintenance Efficiency - Sewerage) For the purposes
of this performance condition, the water only companies are excluded from the
analysis as they do not feature in the sewerage measures, leaving the ten water and
sewerage companies as the comparator group

This process of producing an average ranking would be repeated for the next two
years 1n the performance period to establish an average for the three years On the
basts of this overall average, a ranking Is established (with the company having the
lowest overall average being ranked 1% and so on)
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Vesting of 30% of the award was to be in accordance with the table below,

OFWAT Ranking: Percentage of Award Vesting (for
30% of the Award):

1 100%

2 100%

3-5 Pro rata between 0% and 100%

6 and below 0%

However, since the awards were granted Ofwat have ceased to report on Capital
Maintenance Efficiency - Water and Capital Maintenance Efficiency - Sewerage, and
therefore these measures have since become obsolete

As a result the Committee met in May 2009 and vaned the performance condition for
the 2008 awards to replace the Capital Maintenance measures with a performance
condition that measures performance against the phased capital efficiency target for
the relevant award year and calculates a cumulative efficiency performance over a
three year period (the “Capital Efficiency Measure”)

Subsequently Ofwat also ceased to report on Operating Efficency - Water and
Operating Efficiency — Sewerage although reports are available for the first two years
of the term for the 2008 awards As a result the Committee met on 2 March 2011 and
varied the performance condition for the 2008 awards for the third year of the term to
replace the Operating Efficiency measures with a performance condition that
measures financial performance against the company’s EBITDA target for that third
year

As a result of these changes vesting of 30% of the 2008 award was to be In
accordance with the tables below,

OFWAT Ranking: Percentage of Award Vesting (for
10% of the Award):

1 100%

2 100%

3-5 Pro rata between 0% and 100%

6 and below 0%

Capital Efficiency Measure Percentage of Award Vesting (for
15% of the Award):

100% 100%

At least 75% but below 100% Pro rata between 0% and 100%

Below 75% 0%
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EBITDA Measure Percentage of Award Vesting (for 5%
of the Award):

100% 100%

At least 80% but below 100% Pro rata between 0% and 100%

Below 90% 0%

No awards will vest under the Plan unless, in the opimon of the Committee, the
underlying financial performance of the company has been satisfactory over the
performance period, taking into account all relevant circumstances The Committee
has the power to scale back vesting to any extent considered appropnate in light of
the company's financia!l performance

At its meeting in May 2009 the Committee granted a second set of conditional
awards At its meeting on 2 March 2011 the Committee granted a third set of
conditional awards based on the above amended performance conditions and
amended the 2009 awards to reflect the changes to the Ofwat Report

Accordingly vesting of 30% of the 2009 award I1s to be in accordance with the tables

below,
OFWAT Ranking: Percentage of Award Vesting (for 5%
of the Award):
1 100%
2 100%
3-5 Pro rata between 0% and 100%
6 and below 0%

Capital Efficiency Measure

Percentage of Award Vesting (for
15% of the Award):

100%

100%

At least 75% but below 100%

Pro rata between 0% and 100%

Below 75%

0%

EBITDA Measure Percentage of Award Vesting (for
10% of the Award):
100% 100%

At least 90% but below 100%

Pro rata between 0% and 100%

Below 90%

0%

Vesting of 30% of the 2010 award (granted on 2 March 2011) 1s to be in accordance

with the tables below,
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Capital Efficiency Measure Percentage of Award Vesting (for
15% of the Award):

100% 100%

At least 75% but below 100% Pro rata between 0% and 100%

Below 75% 0%

EBITDA Measure Percentage of Award Vesting (for
15% of the Award):

100% 100%

At least 90% but below 100% Pro rata between 0% and 100%

Below 90% 0%

At a meeting on 31 May 2011 the Committee determined an overall level of vesting of
the 2008 awards at 45% Accordingly this resulted in payments to the directors in
accordance with the table below and were paid in June 2011 (Note Alan Harrison
was not a participant in the 2008 LTIP scheme),

Vesting % Vesting £

Graham Dixon 45 101,250
Mark Penny 45 22,181

The emoluments for Kevin Whiteman, Richard Fint and Liz Barber are disclosed in
the Kelda Holdco Ltd accounts
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5. ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER & OPERATING INCOME FOR THE APPOINTED BUSINESS
for the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
Total Total
Water Sewerage appointed Water Sewerage appointed
services services business services  services business
£m £m £m Em £m £m
Turnover
Unmeasured 199.4 2389 438.3 2020 2389 4409
Measured 1721 1794 351.5 176 0 1755 3515
Trade effluent 0.0 7.6 7.6 - 77 77
Large user and spectal agreement 24.5 29.2 53.7 248 262 510
Rechargeable works 6.2 - 6.2 59 01 60
Bulk supplies/inter company 0.1 - 0.1 01 - 01
Other sources 0.4 1.9 23 05 15 20
Total turnover 402.7 4570 859.7 4093 449 9 8592
Operating income/{loss)
Current cost profit on fixed assets net
of expenses 0.4 {8.1) (7.7) 06 (08) {02
Total operating Income 0.4 {8.1) (7.7) 06 {0 8) (02
Working capital adjustment (2.4) (2.5) (4.9) 06 06 12

6. ANALYSIS OF OPERATING COSTS AND ASSETS

All direct costs are allocated immediately to the actwity to which they relate Indirect
costs and overheads are apportioned on an appropnate basis to reflect the incidence of
such costs Indirect costs include administrative expenses and the provision of common
services
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6. ANALYSIS OF OPERATING COSTS AND ASSETS (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2011

Water Sludge Sewerage
Resources Distnbution supply sub Sewerage Sewage Treatment  services
& treatment total Treatment & Disposal  sub total
DIRECT COSTS fm £m £m £m Em £m £m
Employment costs 101 112 213 52 146 84 28.2
Power 101 105 206 26 161 44 231
Hired and contracted services 28 214 24.2 - - - -
Associated companies - - - 79 52 94 225
Matenals and consumables 97 05 10.2 - - - -
Service charges 56 - 5.6 05 29 48 82
Bulk supply imports 38 - 3.8 11 35 02 4.8
Other direct costs 15 24 39 09 12 07 28
Total direct costs 436 460 89.6 182 435 279 89.6
General and support expenditure
71 100 17.1 34 101 61 19.6
Functional expenditure 507 560 106.7 216 536 340 109.2
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Customer services 13.1 15.0
Scientific services 5.3 1.7
Other business activities 18 21
Business activities sub-total 20.2 18.9
Local authonty rates 25.7 17.5
Doubtful debts 78 8.5
Exceptional tems 4.6 1.3
Total opex less third party services 1650 155.3
Third party services - opex 11.0 05
Total operating expenditure 176.0 155.8
CAPITAL MAINTENANCE
Infrastructure renewals charge 137 299 43.6 183 - - 18.3
Current cost depreciation
- service activities 348 329 67.7 210 911 287 140.8
- business activities 0.9 0.9
Amortisation of grants (14) (1.4)
Amortisation of intangible assets 09 -
Total capital maintenance 111.7 158.6
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS 2877 3144
602.1
CCA NET MEA VALUES
Service activities 40783 142832 18,361.5 16,3833 1,1989 2379 17,8201
Business activibes 10.6 6.4
TOTAL 18,3721 17,826.5
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7. ANALYSIS OF OPERATING COSTS AND ASSETS

for the year ended 31 March 2010

DIRECT COSTS
Employment costs

Power

Hired and contracted services
Associated companies
Matenals and consumables
Service charges

Bulk supply imports

Other direct costs

Total direct costs

General and support expenditure

Functional expenditure
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Customer services
Scientific services

Other business activities
Business activiites sub-total
Local authonty rates
Doubtful debts

Exceptional items

Total opex less third party services

Third party services - opex
Total operating expenditure

CAPITAL MAINTENANCE
Infrasiructure renewals charge
Current cost depreciation

- service activities

- business activities
Amorhsation of grants
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total capital maintenance
TOTAL OPERATING COSTS
CCA NET MEA VALUES
Service actwties

Business actities
TOTAL
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Water Sludge Sewerage
Resources Distnbuton supply sub Sewerage Sewage Treatment  services
& treatment total Treatment & Disposal  sub total
Em £m Em Em £m Em £m
42 71 113 36 59 52 14.7
151 63 214 30 181 37 248
52 139 19.1 86 102 107 29.5
01 01 0.2 - 01 - 0.1
84 02 8.6 01 10 37 48
58 - 5.8 10 386 02 4.8
35 - 3.5 - - - -
12 21 33 07 07 02 1.6
435 297 732 17 0 396 237 80.3
124 121 245 58 13 1 75 264
559 418 97.7 228 527 312 106.7
11 1.7
6.1 1.9
2.1 2.1
19.3 15.7
236 13.7
6.7 71
375 234
184.8 166.6
7.0 -
191.8 166.6
79 230 309 187 - - 18.7
348 287 63.5 191 910 292 139.3
0.6 0.6
{13) (1.4)
0.9 -
94.6 157.2
286.4 323.8
610.2
48503 12,5991 17,4494 153772 1,3653 2301 16,9726
11.8 4.0
17,461.2 16,976.6
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8. CURRENT COST ANALYSIS OF FIXED ASSETS BY ASSET TYPE

as at 31 March 2011

WATER SERVICES
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apni 2010

AMP adjustment

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2011

Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2010

AMP adjustment

RPI adjustment

Disposals

Charge for year

At 31 March 2011

Net book amount at 31 March 2011

Net book amount at 1 Apnl 2010

SEWERAGE SERVICES
Gross replacement cost
At 1 Aprl 2009

AMP adjustment

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2011
Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2010

AMP adjustment

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Charge for year

At 31 March 2011

Net book amount at 31 March 2011
Net book amount at 1 Apnl 2010

Non-
Specialised specialised Other
operational operational Infrastructure  tangible

assets properhies assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
2,461 5 96 4 16,239 2 1766 18,9737
1317 51 868 8 95 1,0151
(2 4) (0 5) - 61) 90

56 9 o1 221 173 96 4
2,647.7 1011 17,1301 197.3 20,076.2
1,424 4 46 - 834 1,512 4
76 2 02 - 45 809
(21) - - 61) 82)
505 04 - 177 68 6
1,5649.0 5.2 - 99.5 1,653.7
1,098.7 959 17,1301 97.8 18,4225
1,037 1 918 16,239 2 932 17,4613
44726 1007 15,054 6 1387 19,7666
2393 54 805 4 74 10575
(13 9) - - (7 8) (21 7)
925 08 314 205 1452
4,790.5 106.9 15,891.4 158.8 20,947.6
27400 235 - 265 12,7900
146 6 13 - 14 149 3
(3 8) - - (77) (11 5)
1215 06 - 196 1417
3,004.3 254 - 39.8 3,069.5
1,786.2 81.5 15891.4 119.0 17,8781
17326 772 15,054 6 1122 16,9766
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8. CURRENT COST ANALYSIS OF FIXED ASSETS BY ASSET TYPE (continued)

as at 31 March 2011

TOTAL

Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2010

AMP adjustment

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2011

Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2010
AMP adjustment
RPI adjustment
Disposals

Charge for year
At 31 March 2011

Net book amount at 31 March 2011

Net book amount at 1 Apnl 2010

Non-

Specialised specialised Other

operational operational Infrastructure  tangible
assets properties assets assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m
6,934 1 197 1 31,2938 3153 38,7403
3710 105 1,674 2 16 9 20726
(16 3) (0 5) - (13 9) (307)
149 4 09 535 378 2416
7,438.2 208.0 33,021.5 356.1 41,023.8
4164 4 281 - 1089 43024
2228 15 - 59 2302
59 - - (13 8) (197)
1720 10 - 373 2103
4,553.3 30.6 - 139.3 4,723.2
2,884.9 177.4 33,021.5 216.8 36,300.6
27697 169 0 31,2938 2054 34,4379
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9. WORKING CAPITAL

Stocks
Trade debtors - measured household

- unmeasured household

- measured non-household

- unmeasured non-household
Other trade debtors

Measured income accrual

Prepayments and other debtors

Trade creditors

Deferred income - customer advance receipts
Short term capital creditors

Accruals and other creditors

Total working capital

2011

1.2
25.6
31.6

9.6
0.2
13.3
46.8
12.5
(47.3)
(50.4)
(104.4)
7.6
(68.9)

10. MOVEMENT ON CURRENT COST RESERVE

Balance at 1 April
AMP adjustment

RPI adjustments

Fixed assets

Working capital

Financing

Grants and third party contributions
Balance at 31 March

2011
£m

30,343.4

1,842.5
4.9
(175.2)

{23 0)
31,992.6
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2010
£m
11
258
311
163
04
54
45 3
1009
(45 8)
{52 3)
(29 1)

2010
£m

19,7849
9,258 0

1,451 2
(12)
(131 7)

(178)
30,343 4
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11. RECONCILIATION OF APPOINTED BUSINESS OPERATING PROFIT TO NET
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Current cost operating profit

Working capital adjustment

Movement in worktng capital

Receipts from other income

Current cost deprectation

Current cost profit on sale of fixed assets
Infrastructure renewals charge

Other non-cash profit and loss items

Net cash flow from operating activities

12. NET DEBT ANALYSIS

Maturity profile

Between one and two years
Between two and five years
Between five and twenty years
In more than twenty years

Cash
Adjusted net debt at 31 March 2011

Amounts owed to subsidiary company

Total net debt at 31 March 2011

2011 2010

Em £m

245.0 2500

49 (12)

90.4 (937)

2.4 188

208.4 2040

7.7 02

61.9 496

7.8 570

628.5 484 7

Fixed Floating Index Total

rate rate linked

£m £m £m £m
179 - - 17.9
167 - - 16.7
5191 - 16 3 535.4
539 632 237 140.8
607 6 63 2 400 710.8
(45.4)
665.4
2,290.9

77

2,956.3




Notes to the Regulatory Accounting Information

13. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN STATUTORY AND REGULATORY ACCOUNTS

for the year end 31 March 2011
Regulatory accounts item

Profit and loss account
Operating profit

Profit before tax

Balance sheet
Tangible assets
Infrastructure renewals accrual

Deferred income - grants and contributions

Investment - loan to a group company

Short term deposits

Borrowings (due within one year)

Corporation tax payable

Debtors

Creditors {due within one year)

Creditors (due after more than one year)

Statutory
UKGAAP
£m

31386

424

4,357 8

{63 3)

1,088 9

(333 8)

(134 4)
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Regulatory
Em

3112

424

43760
(18 2)

(74 0)

928 8

50

(63 3)

(54)

160 1

(326 1)

63 3)

Rental income of E£24m
classified as ‘other income’ In
regulatory accounts
Profit before tax unaffected by
items shown above

FRS15 adopted 1n statutory
accounts does not permit
infrastructure renewals
accounting, as required In
regulatory accounts A £18 2m
accrual 1s netted off assets
Within the statutory accounts
deferred income s included
within creditors due within one
year (£3 Om) and creditors due
after more than one vyear
(£71 0m)

An internal loan to a group
company 15 Included within
debtors in statutory accounts
Within the statutory accounts
short term deposits are
disclosed within ‘cash and short
term deposits’

At 31 March 2011 there are no
internal loans due within 1 year
Therefore  borrowings  due
within one year are aligned
within  the  statutory and
regulatory accounts

Included within creditors In
statutory accounts, but itemised
separately n regulatory
accounts

internal  loans to  group
company included within
investment and short term
deposits Iin regulatory accounts
As above, internal loans and
corporation tax  treatment
differs between the statutory
and regulatory accounts

As above, deferred ncome
treatment differs between the
statutory and regulatory
accounts
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14. REGULATORY CAPITAL VALUES AT 2010/11 PRICES

2011

£m

Opening regulatory capital value for the year * 4,556
Price review opening adjustment 25
Indexation 245
Capital expenditure (excluding IRE) * 3
Infrastructure renewals expenditure 79
Infrastructure renewals charge (59)
Grants and contributions (12)
Depreciation (184)
OQutperformance of regulatory assumptions (5 years n arrears) (37)
Closing regulatory capital value * 4,924
Average regulatory capital value 4,749

* The table shows the regulatory capital value as published by Ofwat in Apnl 2011, at
March 2011 prices, with the exception of the average RCV, which i1s shown at average
prices The differences from the actual capital expenditure, depreciation etc will not
affect price imits in the current penod Capital efficiencies will be taken into account in
the calculation for the next periodic review
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INTRODUCTION

The requirements of the Regulatory Operating and Financiat Review are set out in this section
and, where noted by cross reference below, in the Business Review and Directors’ Report that
accompany the statutory financial statements of Yorkshire Water

The Business Review on page 3 of the statutory financial statements of Yorkshire Water
contains a descniption of the business, its strategy and review of financial and operational
performance In the year, together with key performance indicators, based on the statutory
accounts It also sets out forward-looking statements and the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the business

This review contains additional information and disclosures on regulatory financial information

The Directors’ Report on page 18 of the statutory financial statements of Yorkshire Water sets
out the principal activities of the company, subsequent events and company’s policy in respect
of employees, employment practices, environment and community matters

The Regulatory Operating and Financial Review in the Regulatory Accounts 1s required by
Ofwat The contents, including the cross-referencing to the statutory financial statements where
appropnate, have been prepared following the Accounting Standards Board's Reporting
Statement, as supplemented by additional Ofwat requirements

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Profit before tax has decreased by £122 1m to £42 4m and operating profit has reduced by £1 5m to
£3112m since 2009/10 Excluding the impact of the exceptional items of £5 8m in 2010/11 and
£60 9m n 2009/10, operating profit has reduced by £53 5m This underlying reduction i1s due to an
increase In certain operating cost items which have seen a step increase between AMP4 and AMPS
In addition to the step increases, the underlying cost base was also impacted by an average RPI
increase of 5 0%

Total regulated turnover for 2010/11 amounted to £859 7m, an increase of £0 5m (0 05%) over the
2009/10 total of £859 2m 2010/11 appointed income out turned at £859 7m (£851 1m main
charges and £8 6m other revenues respectively) This income i1s £0 6m higher than the income
anticipated within the Final Determination (FD) when restated for actual RPI

An increase on main charges income aganst the FD 1s largely offset by a decrease in other
income The main charges income increase reflects

+ A lower level of domestic meter optants than assumed,

¢ Improved iIncome generation activities, and

+ A lower level of decline on our commercial customers than assumed

Operating costs reduced by £13 3m to £394 7m, which compnsed regulated operating costs of
£326 9m (2010 £297 5m), exceptional costs of £59m (2010 £609m) and an nfrastructure
renewals charge of £61 9m (2010 £49 6m)

Regulated operating costs increased by £29 4m (9 9%) from 2009/10 The year on year movement
has arisen as follows

+ Increase of £14 9m in relation to a year on year movement in RPI,
¢ £6 2m additional expenditure on leakage management,

¢ £92mnrelation to a pension deficit payment,

¢ £19m additional bad debt costs,
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£4 2m increase In the non domestic rates bill subsequent to the five yearly revaluation,
£4 7m increase from change in accounting for leakage costs,

£3 1m decrease from a reduction in the wholesale energy pnice, and

£8 6m other savings identfied

The infrastructure renewals charge of £61 9m represents a £12 3m increase compared to 2009/10
The increase 1n the IRC from previous years has resulted from the forecast infrastructure renewals
expenditure for the penod 2010 - 2020 being updated following receipt of the Final Determination
The calculation covers the penod 2005 - 2020 as more robust information 1s now available for the
AMPS penod

The interest charge of £271 2m was £104 2m higher than 2009/10 £58 5m of the increase was
dnven by the RPI uplift on index linked swaps and bonds (£72 6m in 2010/11 compared to a £13 1m
uphft in 2009/10) In addition a £40 Om exceptional interest cost has been recogrised in 2010/11 1n
relation to the movement in an onerous contract provision In relation to index linked swaps which are
out of the money and do not fully hedge floating rate debt

The tax charge for the year includes a current corporation tax credit of £16 4m, based on tax on
profit on ordinary activities at 28% as a result of prior year adjustments, and a deferred tax credit of
£59 2m, reflecting the impact on deferred tax provisions of the reduction to the future corporation tax
rate from 28% to 26%

Exceptional items
The severe winter weather event led to the following exceptional costs

Employment costs £0 9m One off payments and overtime to staff who
worked exceptional hours over the
Christmas period

Power costs £10m Additional winter pumping

Hired and contracted £2 9m Payments to service partners for additional
services resource over the winter penod

Associated companies £02m Additional staff required at Loop to cover

higher level of calls received due to the
weather conditions

Matenals and consumables  £0 5m Bottled water and other matenals required

Cther direct costs £04m £0 3m of additional insurance payments
£0 1m of compensation payments to
customers

Total £5.9m

Atypical costs

The dry summer conditions, as descnbed in the board overview, led to net additional costs of
£0 6m, comprising additional clean water pumping costs of £1 1m offset by reduced pumping
costs associated with waste water assets of £0 5m These have been included as atypical

Donations to charitable trusts

£0 1m donations (2010 £nil} were made by the company during the year to various chantable
organisations including the Pakistan Earthquake appeal and One Millon Green Fingers “*OMGF”
community projects In addition, £0 6m was donated by Kelda Group Ltd, a company owned by
the ultimate parent to the Yorkshire Water Community Trust

Dividends

Dividend payments of £46.9m were made during the year (2010 £211 Om) No final dividend i1s
proposed in respect of 2010/11
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Cautionary statement

The purpose of this annual report 1s to provide information to members of the company and
contains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the operations, performance and
financial condition of the group By their nature, these statements involve uncertainty since
future events and circumstances can cause results to dffer from those anticipated Nothing in
this report should be construed as a profit forecast
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible under Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment by the
Secretary of State for the Environment of the company as a water and sewerage undertaker
under the Water Act 1991 for

a) ensuring that proper accounting records are kept by the Appointee as required by
paragraph 3 of Condition F of the Instrument and having regard to the terms of any
guidelines notified from time to time by Ofwat,

b) prepanng on a consistent basis in respect of each financial year accounting statements
in agreement with the Appointee's accounting records and in accordance with the
requirements of Condition F and any guidelines notified from time to time by Ofwat to
the Appointee So far as reasonably practicable these should have the same content
as the annual accounts of the Appointee prepared under the Companies Act 2006 and
be prepared n accordance with the formats and the accounting policies and principles
which apply to those accounts,

<) preparing accounting statements on a current cost basis in respect of the same
accounting period n accordance with guidelines 1ssued to the Appointee from time to
time

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE AUDITORS

As stated on page 51, as far as each director 1s aware there I1s no relevant audit information
of which the company's auditors are unaware and each director has taken such steps as he
or she should have taken as a director in order to make him or herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of the information

The maintenance and integnty of the Company’s web site 1s the responsibility of the directors and the maintenance and integnity of the
Regulator’s web site 1s the responsibility of the Regulator, the work carred out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the Regulatory Accounts
sinee they were imtially presented on the web sites

Legislation in the Umted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements and Regulatory Accounts may
differ from legislation 1n other junsdiction
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Other Regulatory Declarations

RING FENCING

In the opinion of the Directors, the company was in compliance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition K
of the Instrument of Appointment at the end of the financial year This relates to the availability of
rghts and assets in the event of a special administration order

DIRECTORS’ CERTIFICATE - CONDITION F
The Drrectors declare that, in their opinion

)] the company will have available to it sufficient financial resources and facilities to enable it
to carry out, for at least the next 12 months, its requlated activities (including the investment
programme necessary to fulfil ts obligations under ts appointments), and

n the company will, for at least the next 12 months, have availlable to it

a) management resources, and
b) systems of planning and internal control

which are sufficient to enable it to carry out those functions
In making this declaration, the Directors have taken into account -

a) the net worth of the company and the strength of key performance indicators as shown
in the audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the company's business
plan for 2011/12,

b)  borrowing facilities which include significant committed undrawn bank facilities,

c) parental support provided by the holding company which will provide financial support
to the company to enable it to meet its habiities as they fall due,

d) the company's formal nsk management process which reviews, monitors and reports
on the company’'s nsks and mitigating controls and considers potential impact in terms
of service, comphance, value, people, society and partners, and

e) the company’'s employment policies and strategy as described in detail in the Directors’
Report on pages 21 and 22 of the statutory financial statements of Yorkshire Water

The Directors also declare that in theirr opinion all contracts entered intc with any Asscciated
Company, include all necessary provisions and requirements concerning the standard of service
to be supplied to the company to ensure that it 1s able to meet all its obligations as a water and
sewerage undertaker, as required in Section 6A 2A(3) of Condition F of the Instrument of
Appointment This opinton has been formed following examination of the documents in question
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Regulatory
Accounting Information

Independent Auditors’ report to the Water Services Regulation Authority (the
Authority, referred to as the “WSRA”) and the Directors of Yorkshire Water Services
Limited

We have audited the regulatory accounts of Yorkshire Water Services Limited (“the Company”) for
the year ended 31 March 2011 on pages 55 to 79 (the “Regulatory Accounts”) which compnse

= the regulatory historical cost accounting statements, compnsing the regulatory histoncal cost
profit and loss account, the regulatory historical cost balance sheet, the regulatory historical
cost statement of total recognised gains and losses and the histoncal cost reconciliation
between the statutory financial statements and the Regulatory Accounts, and

= the regulatory current cost accounting statements for the appointed business comprising the
current cost profit and loss account, the current cost balance sheet, the current cost cash flow
statement and the related notes including the Statement of Accounting Policies

These Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the basis of preparation and
accounting policies set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the Company and the WSRA In
order to meet the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the
Secretary of State for the Environment to the Company as a water and sewage undertaker under
the Water Industry Act 1991 (“Condition F”} Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company and the WSRA those matters that we have agreed to state to them in our
report, in order (a) to assist the Company to meet its obligation under Condition F to procure such
a report and (b) to facilitate the carrying out by the WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no
other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company and the WRSA, for our audit work, for this report or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the Directors and Auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 83, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the Regulatory Accounts and for ther far
presentation In accordance with the basis of preparation and accounting policies Our responsibility
1$ to audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory Accounts in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and !reland), except as stated in the ‘Scope of the audit of the
Regulatory Accounts’ below, and having regard to the guidance contained n Audit 05/03
‘Reporting to Regulators of Regulated Entities’ 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Regulatory Accounts

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory
Accounts sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounts are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’'s circumstances and have been
consistently appled and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the Regulatory Accounts In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Regulatory Accounts to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited Regulatory Accounts If we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report
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Accounting Information

We have not assessed whether the accounting policies are approprate to the circumstances of the
Company where these are laid down by Condition F Where Condition F does not give specific
guidance on the accounting policies to be followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies adopted in respect of the transactions and balances required to be included
In the Regulatory Accounts are consistent with those used in the preparation of the statutory
financial statements of the company Furthermore, as the nature, form and content of Regulatory
Accounts are determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy of the
presentation of the information, which would have been required If we were to express an audit
opinion under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland)

QOpinion on Regulatory Accounts
in our opinion the Regulatory Accounts

« fairly present in accordance with Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued
by the WSRA and the accounting policies set out on page 60 the state of the Company’s
affairs at 31 March 2011 on an historical cost and current cost basis, and its historical cost
and current cost profit and its current cost cash flow for the year then ended, and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines and the accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that the Regulatory Accounts have
been prepared in accordance with Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidefines, the
accounting policies set out In the statement of accounting policies and, in the case of the regulatory
histoncal cost accounting statements, under the historical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financial statements of the Company and
have not been prepared under the basis of Unted Kngdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (“UK GAAP") Financial information other than that prepared on the basis of UK GAAP
does not necessarily represent a true and fair view of the financial perfermance or financial position
of a company as shown In statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 20068 Furthermore, the regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages
55 and 56 have been drawn up In accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 Iin that
infrastructure renewals accounting as applied in previous years should continue to be applied and
accordingly, that the relevant sections of Financial Reporting Standards 12 and 15 be disapplied
The effect of this departure from Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and a reconciliation of
the balance sheet drawn up on this basis to the balance sheet drawn up under the Companies Act
2006 1s given on page 33

Opinion on other matters prescribed by Condition F
Under the terms of our contract we have assumed responsibility to provide those additional
opinions required by Condition F in relation to the accounting records [n our opinion

s proper accounting records have been kept by the appointee as required by paragraph 3 of
Condition F, and

e the Regulatory Accounts are in agreement with the accounting records and returns
retained for the purpose of preparing the Regulatory Accounts

Other matters

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the WSRA It i1s not
appropriate for us to assess whether the nature of the information being reported upon I1s suitable
or appropnate for the WRSA’s purposes Accordingly we make no such assessment

86




4

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Regulatory
Accounting Information

Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounts 1s separate from our opimon on the statutory financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 on which we reported on [x] June
2011, which are prepared for a different purpose Our audit report in relation to the statutory
financial statements of the Company (our “Statutory audit”) was made solely to the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
Statutory audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in a statutory audit report and for no other purpose In
these circumstances, to the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom our Statutory audit report Is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in
writing

fi

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Leeds

7 July 2011
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